AGENDA
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ANNUAL MEETING

TUESDAY, October 8, 2024 — 10:00 AM

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1234 MARKET STREET IN THE 17TH FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
AND IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. YOU WILL NEED VALID IDENTIFICATION TO ENTER THE BUILDING.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LOCATED ON THE PAGE
FOLLOWING THE AGENDA

AGENDA
I Roll Call
Il. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of September 10, 2024
lll. Executive Director’s Report
IV. Administrative Matters

A. Interagency Transfers

1. The properties below are proposed for transfer to the Philadelphia Housing
Development Corporation for disposition, reuse and/or management by the
Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation, specifically for community open
space preservation.

e 5122-24 Harlan Street (CD 3) (property being transferred by the Department
of Public Property to PHDC via the Land Bank)
e 5110 Harlan Street (CD 3)

B. Amendment to Approved Disposition

1. Amendment to Resolution No. 2021-44 adopted by the Board on September 14,
2021, which approved Sepviva Lofts LLC to develop 2201 E. Tioga Street in the
Sixth (6%) Council District (then the 1%t Council District) as follows:

e A non-LIHTC affordable residential rental project with 76 units: 7 studios,
54 1-BR units, 15 2-BR units, parking, storage, and common space, 51% of the
units would be rented to occupants up to 80% AMI and 49% of the units to
would be rented to market rate occupants.

The developer is requesting approval for the conversion of the project to a LIHTC

affordable rental development that will contain 51 units:

= A mix of 25 1-BR, 13 2-BR, and 13 3-BR units.

= 16 units will be designed for residents with physical disabilities.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 1 of 123




= Common amenity spaces will include a lobby, community center and leasing /
management office at the ground floor, elevator, computer lab, common
laundry, and an outdoor playground for residents.

= Supportive services will be provided on site, and there will be 44 on-site
parking spaces for residents.

= All units will serve residents at or below 50% of Area Median Income (AMI),
with 6 units set aside for those at or below 20% AMI. 31% of units will serve
special needs populations: formerly homeless and/or physically disabled
households.

V. Property Dispositions

A. Development — Affordable Housing (unsolicited)

1. The properties below are proposed for disposition to HOW Charities to develop
sixteen (16) single-family homeownership units in the Third (3™) Council District.
The units will each be two stories, with an unfinished basement, containing three
(3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at an average of 1,028 square feet each.
They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a
maximum sales price of $280,000. The homes will be eligible for the
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject
to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this
project.

e 3924* Cambridge Street; 3909* Pennsgrove Street; 1110%*, 1112*, 1113%,
1118*, and 1128* State Street; 3900%*, 3902*, 3904, 3906, 3911%, 3912%,
3919%*, 3921, and 3926* Wyalusing Avenue (CD 3) (*denotes properties being
transferred by the City of Philadelphia to the Land Bank)

2. The properties below are proposed for disposition to BKP Development Group
LLC to develop ten (10) single-family homeownership units in the Third (3™)
Council District. The units will each be two stories, without basements, containing
three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,200 square feet
each. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a
maximum sales price of $280,000. The homes will be eligible for the
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject
to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this
project.

e 3842,3844,3851*, and 3855* Aspen Street; 3902%, 3903*, and 3906* Brown
Street; 666* and 674* Union Street; 747* N. 39th Street (CD 3) (*denotes
properties being transferred by the City of Philadelphia or the Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank)

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 2 of 123



4. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Civetta Property Group LLC
to develop twenty-two (22) single-family homeownership units in the Eighth (8t)
Council District. The units will each be two stories, without basements, containing
three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,100 square feet
each. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 80% of AMI for a
maximum sales price of $250,000. The homes will be eligible for the
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject
to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this
project.

e 1520-40 and 1600-20 W. Venango Street (CD 8) (*denotes properties being
transferred by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank)

VI. Public Comment (Old & New Business)

VIl. Adjournment

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 3 of 123



FROM: Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Senior Counsel

RE: Philadelphia Land Bank October 8, 2024 Board Meeting
Board Meeting Notice, Public Attendance, and Comment Procedures

DATE:  September 27, 2024

The October 2024 Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land
Bank”) is currently scheduled for Tuesday, October 8, 2024, with the Executive Session to begin at
9:30 A.M. and the meeting to begin at 10:00 A.M or as soon as the Executive Session has ended.

THIS MEETING WILL BE IN-PERSON AT 1234 MARKET STREET IN THE
17" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM AND IS OPEN TO PUBLIC
ATTENDEES AND FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS. YOU
WILL NEED VALID IDENTIFICATION TO ENTER THE BUILDING.

PLEASE NOTE: To participate in the meeting you must sign in before entering the conference room.
This requirement is necessary to allow us to collect the names of participants as required by law.

The Board agenda and package will be available to view no later than five (5) days prior to the Board
meeting at https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/. Public comment and
questions regarding the matters that are posted on the agenda may be submitted by email prior to the Board
meeting and/or in person if attending the Board meeting.

Public Comment BEFORE Board Meeting:

Email the following information to andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, October 7,
2024:

e Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable;
e Contact information (your email address);

e Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and

e State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner.

Questions/comments submitted via email by the 3:00 pm deadline will be summarized at the Board meeting,
answered or addressed to the extent the Board chooses, and attached to the minutes of the meeting.

(continued on next page)

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 4 of 123


https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/
mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov

Public Comment DURING Board Meeting:

If you wish to comment on a particular agenda item, you must indicate that on the sign-in sheet before
the meeting begins. Once recognized by the Board Chair, individuals will be allowed two (2) minutes for
public comment per person per agenda item.

e The Chair reserves the right to limit comments when more than a certain number of people have
the same comments on the same matter.
e Staff will assist with timing and identifying individuals as needed.

Rules of Conduct:
e Comments must be related to the specific agenda item being reviewed.

e There will be no personal attacks or hate speech against anyone, including applicants, staff
members, Board members or other members of the public.

Minutes of Board Meeting:

The draft minutes of a Board meeting will be made publicly available when the Board package for the
next Board meeting is posted on the Land Bank Board website. Once approved by the Board, the
approved minutes will be posted under the appropriate Board meeting date on the Land Bank website.

If you have a question about an agenda item after the meeting concludes, please submit it to
andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov with the following information:

e Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable;
e Contact information (your email address);

e Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and

e State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner.

Land Bank staff will provide a response to the extent possible.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 5 of 123


mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

SEPTEMBER 10, 2024, BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Tuesday,
September 10, 2024, at 1234 Market Street, 17" Floor Boardroom, Philadelphia, PA 19107, of which
proper notices were given. A condensed certified transcript of this meeting is attached to these
minutes as Exhibit A.

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 am.

Andrea Imredy Saah, Senior Counsel, announced that this is the first in-person meeting since
February 2020 and is being transcribed. Ms. Imredy Saah requested that the public stand up and
speak clearly if they have any questions or comments to aid in the transcription process, and also
reminded the public and Board members to state their full name when speaking.

Prior to today’s Public Session, the Board held an Executive Session during which Mr. Rodriguez
reviewed the agenda and covered issues the Policy Committee will be reviewing.

Ms. Imredy Saah then gave an overview of the rules of conduct for public comment. Individuals

should raise their hand if they wish to comment or ask a question, and individuals will be allowed
two minutes per public comment per person. Comments must be related to the agenda item being
discussed, and the Chair reserves the right to limit comment.

Item I
Roll Call

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Cornelius Brown, Nicholas
Dema, Andrew Goodman, Jenny Greenberg, Kelvin Jeremiah, Michael Johns, Rebecca Lopez Kriss,
Majeedah Rashid and Herbert Wetzel.

Darwin Beauvais joined the meeting at 10:23 am during discussion of Agenda Item VL.B.1.

Maria Gonzalez was absent from today’s Board meeting.

The following Land Management staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Andrea Imredy
Saah, Esq., Robert Spence, Esq., Karen Anaya, Todd Hestand, Brian Romano, Mathen Pullukattu and
Carolyn Terry.

Public Attendees: the list of public attendees follow these minutes.

A quorum of Directors was present, and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with
business.

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 1 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 6 of 123



Item II
Approval of Board Minutes

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board regarding the minutes of the Board
meeting of August 13, 2024. There were none.

Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding approval of the minutes.
Mr. Johns moved to approve the minutes. Mr. Goodman seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the August 13, 2024 Board
Meeting minutes.

Item IV
Executive Director’s Report

Mr. Rodriguez had three items to review with the Board and public attendees. Mr. Rodriguez’s first
item was Fiscal Year 2025 dispositions. Twenty-four (24) resolutions for Board-approved
dispositions from the summer’s Board meetings were submitted to the Mayor’s Legislative
Department and are ready for submission to City Council.

Mr. Rodriguez next discussed changes to previously approved projects. Resolution 2023-32 allows
the Executive Director of the Land Bank to approve certain increases in the maximum price of
Board-approved affordable housing projects. The Affordable Alliance Company Grays Ferry —
Dover and Myrtlewood RFP Project and the Affordable Alliance Company Grays Ferry — Wharton
and Dover RFP Project maximum sales prices were increased to $265,000 per unit.

Mr. Rodriguez also discussed the ribbon cutting for the one-hundredth (100th) Turn the Key (TTK)
home, which occurred on September 6. The Mayor, Councilmembers, Land Bank staff, PHDC staff,
developers, and members of the public attended the ceremony. Mr. Rodriguez reiterated this is part
of the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative bond issuance, and this is the product of the City’s
Blueprint for Homeownership process which began in 2022. Mr. Rodriguez thanked the Land Bank’s
partners at the City and all developers who have been approved for Turn the Key projects. The next
ribbon cutting will be in October for Affordable Alliance Company projects; Affordable Alliance
Company LLC is a Minority Developer Program partnership between Fine Print Construction and
The Riverwards Group.

The full report containing additional details regarding Turn the Key program updates is attached to
these minutes as Exhibit B.

Mr. Rodriguez concluded his report and asked for questions. There were none.

Ttem III
Policy & Planning Committee Report

Mr. Goodman reported on the Policy and Planning Committee, which recently held its first meeting.
M. Goodman was elected Committee Chair at the meeting. The Committee reviewed its charter and
discussed its roles and responsibilities within the Lank Bank. The Committee will be meeting
monthly starting next month.

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 2 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 7 of 123



Item V
Administrative Matters

Item V.A.1. — Amendment to Approved Disposition

Item V.A.1. was tabled prior to the meeting.

Item V. B.1 — Interagency Transfers

Mr. Andrew Goodman recused himself from discussion and voting on this item and left the room.
Mr. Goodman’s letter of recusal is attached to these minutes as Exhibit C.

Mr. Rodriguez presented the proposed transfer of the property located at 1105 North 41st Street and
1218 North 41st Street in the 3rd Council District to the Philadelphia Housing Development
Corporation for community open space preservation. Both properties will be transferred from the
Department of Public Property to PHDC via the Land Bank.

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. There were none.

Chair Wetzel called for comments received prior to the Board meeting. None were received.

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Public.

Joyce Smith from East Parkside Board of Trustees thanked Councilmember Johnson and Mr.
Goodman for their assistance with the transfer of North Star Park.

Gail Mapp from Concerned Citizens of Philadelphia commented about an upcoming item on the
agenda. Chair Wetzel requested comments be made only regarding the resolution under
consideration.

Jihad Ali, member of the East Parkside Residents Association, spoke in support of the transfers.
Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding the proposed transfer.

Mr. Johns moved to approve the transfers. Ms. Greenberg seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing Conveyance of 1105 North 41st Street and 1218 North 41st Street to Philadelphia

Housing Development Corporation (attached to these minutes as Exhibit D).

Item VI
Property Dispositions

VI.A. Development — Request for Proposals

Item VI.A.1

Mr. Pullukattu requested the Board’s approval to convey 23, 24, 45, 49, 51, 53, 55, 57, 59, 61, 62, 65,
67,73,75,77,78, 89-91 and 106 E. Ashmead Street in the Eighth (8th) Council District to HOW
Affordable Housing LLC. The applicant proposes to develop twenty-one (21) single-family

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 3 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 8 of 123



homeownership units. Five (5) of the units will be two stories, with a finished partial basement,
containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,224 square feet each.
Sixteen (16) of the units will be two stories, without a basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and
two (2) bathrooms averaging approximately 1,110 square feet each. They will be sold to households
with incomes at or below 80% of AMI for a maximum sales price of $250,000. The homes will be
eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. Applications were solicited via a Request for Proposals for the
properties, and the applicant was the most qualified bidder evaluated pursuant to the disposition
policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project.

Mr. Goodman returned to the meeting while Mr. Pullukattu spoke.

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. There were none.

Chair Wetzel called for comments received prior to the Board meeting. Ms. Imredy Saah responded
that multiple letters were received. Suzanne Ponsen from West Central Germantown Neighbors wrote
in opposition to the resolution, arguing that neighbors should be allowed to acquire the properties.
Allison Weiss wrote in opposition to the resolution and was also in favor of neighbors being able to

purchase the properties.

Clara Brown wrote in support of the project and the benefits it will bring to the community. Destiny
Dobbins also wrote in support of the project and the opportunities it will create.

All letters are attached to the minutes as Exhibit E.

Ms. Lopez Kriss asked which parcel was requested to be maintained as a garden. Ms. Imredy Saah
replied the letter did not identify the parcel. Mr. Pullukattu added that the developer already removed
some parcels from the project based on existing uses.

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Public.

Jihad Ali spoke in support of the developer and his dedication to minority hiring on his projects.
Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding the proposed disposition.

Mr. Jeremiah moved to approve the disposition. Mr. Johns seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing Conveyance of 23, 24, 45, 49, 51, 53, 55, 57, 59, 61, 62, 65, 67, 73, 75, 77, 78, 89-91
and 106 East Ashmead Street to How Affordable Housing LLC (attached to these minutes as
Exhibit F).

VI.B. — Development— Affordable Housing (unsolicited)

Item VIL.B.1

Mr. Hestand requested the Board’s approval to convey 1212 S. 17th Street; 1317 and 1511 S. 20th
Street; 1904 S. 23rd Street; 1216 S. 31st Street; 1911 Gerritt Street; and 1932 and 2044 Titan Street
in the Second (2nd) Council District to Cheesecake Properties LLC. The applicant proposes to
develop eight (8) single-family homeownership units. The units will each be two stories, without a

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 4 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 9 of 123



basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,100 square feet
each. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 80% of AMI for a maximum sales
price of $250,000. The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the
Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was
unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project.

Mr. Beauvais joined the meeting at 10:23 am while Mr. Hestand spoke.
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. There were none.

Chair Wetzel called for comments received prior to the Board meeting. Ms. Imredy Saah responded
that multiple letters were received. Gavin and Sabrina Tabor wrote regarding an application they
submitted to purchase one of the parcels as a side yard. Ms. Imredy Saah added the application was
processed and rejected because the property was previously set aside for affordable housing. Isabela
Alvarez wrote with questions and concerns regarding the income level. Ms. Imredy Saah already
responded to both inquiries.

Silvia Lucci of LUHV Food wrote in support of the application, having hired the applicant, Mr.
Cerquiera, to successfully build out their restaurant. Angie Williamson of Jumpstart Germantown and
Jumpstart Philly also wrote in support of the application. Jumpstart Philly has funded previous
projects, and Mr. Cerquiera has completed all on time and to high standards. Oren Pollak, a Point
Breeze resident, sees the need for affordable housing in South Philadelphia and supports the project.
David Langlieb, on behalf of the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, is helping finance the project and
supports the construction of new, quality housing through the Turn the Key program. Trades for a
Difference wrote the developer has demonstrated his commitment to servicing minority communities
in the City and it supports the project. Albert Littlepage, writing on behalf of Point Breeze
Community Development Corporation, is in favor of housing that is affordable for working-class
people and supports the project.

All letters are attached to the minutes as Exhibit G.
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Public.

Gail Mapp, of Concerned Citizens of Point Breeze, spoke against the project, requesting the
properties be held for projects at or below 60% AMI.

David Langlieb, from the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, reaffirmed his support for the project, and
stated the units are effectively affordable for those making between 50% and 60% of AMI.

Mohamed Rushdy also spoke in support of the project and its affordability, noting that 2042 Titan
Street, adjacent to one of the project properties, just sold for $428,000, and the average TTK buyer
will have a $195,000 mortgage on the TTK property to be built next to it.

Jordan Parisse-Ferrarini, Executive Director of Trades for a Difference, spoke in support of the
project and spoke to the developer’s commitment to workforce development.

Jihad Ali spoke in support of Trades for a Difference and Mr. Parisse-Ferrarini.

Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding the proposed disposition.

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 5 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 10 of 123



Mr. Jeremiah moved to approve the disposition. Mr. Beauvais seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing Conveyance of 1212 South 17th Street; 1317 and 1511 South 20th Street; 1904
South 23rd Street; 1216 South 31st Street; 1911 Gerritt Street; and 1932 and 2044 Titan Street
to Cheesecake Properties LLC (attached to these minutes as Exhibit H).

Item VI.B.2

Mr. Hestand requested the Board’s approval to convey 2407, 2409, 2411, 2413, 2415, 2439, 2441,
2443, 2445, and 2447 N. 6th Street in the Seventh (7th) Council District to The Prime Corporation of
New Jersey, Inc. The applicant proposes to develop ten (10) single-family homeownership units. The
units will each be two stories, with a finished basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2)
bathrooms at approximately 1,300 square feet each. They will be sold to households with incomes at
or below 100% of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000. The homes will be eligible for the
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of
Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition
policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project.

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. Mr. Johns praised the layouts of the
units.

Chair Wetzel asked if comments were received prior to the Board meeting. Ms. Imredy Saah
responded that multiple letters were received. Senior Pastor Glenn Dawson, Jr. of the Greater Impact
Worship Center supports the project and believes it shares their values of social equity, diversity, and
homeownership. Norris Square Community Alliance wrote in that it supports affordable housing in
the neighborhood and supports this development. David Langlieb, on behalf of the Philadelphia
Accelerator Fund, is helping finance the project and wrote in support of the project.

Jerome Blount wrote that he is using the land, objects to the project, and seemingly made a claim of
adverse possession. Ms. Imredy Saah stated adverse possession claims cannot be filed against the
Land Bank.

All letters are attached to the minutes as Exhibit I.

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Public.

Mara Hanao lives a block away from the properties and does not support the project. Ms. Hanao does
not believe this will benefit the people who live in these neighborhoods and would prefer the money
be spent on PHA housing and PHA residents.

Jerome Blount stated he has been using the properties but is willing to remove his belongings. Mr.
Blount requested additional time to complete the removal. Mr. Rodriguez responded that the Land
Bank can work with him after the meeting concludes regarding the removals.

Jihad Ali spoke in support of the developer and the project.

Mohamed Rushdy spoke in support of the developer and stated he was glad that Norris Square
Alliance now supports building $280,000 homes in the neighborhood.

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 6 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 11 of 123



Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding the proposed disposition.

Mr. Johns moved to approve the disposition. Mr. Brown seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing Conveyance of 2407, 2409, 2411, 2413, 2415, 2439, 2441, 2443, 2445 and 2447
North 6th Street to The Prime Corporation Of New Jersey, Inc. (attached to these minutes as
Exhibit J).

C. Side/Rear Yards

Mr. Rodriguez requested that the Board authorize the conveyance of 532 W. Dauphin Street in the
7th Council District to the adjacent owners, Rufus F. Lovera and Elba I. Lovera, to be used as a side
or rear yard. The applicant is compliant and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia. The
property will be subject to a 30-year mortgage and use restrictions as a side or rear yard.

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. There were none.

Chair Wetzel called for comments received prior to the Board meeting. Ms. Imredy Saah stated an
email was received from Bo James McCain of Zulu Nation CDC, who objects to the conveyance of
public land for private ownership and believes the land should be left for open space. Mr. McCain
also wrote that the applicants already acquired 528 West Dauphin from the City in prior years and
already have an enclosed garage and parking area, eliminating one street parking space from the
block.

Chair Wetzel asked for confirmation that the garage lot and this parcel are separate properties, and
Ms. Imredy Saah confirmed that the side yard lot is on the other side of the house. Mr. Rodriguez
confirmed the comments were not about the property under consideration today, and the previous
acquisition did not include use restrictions when it was approved. Ms. Greenberg asked if the side
yard would be use restricted. Mr. Rodriguez confirmed it would be use-restricted.

Chair Wetzel asked if there were additional questions from the Board. Mr. Goodman asked if the
Land Bank could confirm the statement from the public comment that a garage was built on the
previously acquired parcel. Mr. Rodriguez stated a tall roll-top gate has been installed and a shed is in
the yard, but no garage has been constructed.

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Public.

Rufus Lovera, the applicant, spoke about applying to use the property as a place for his children and
grandchildren to play outside. Mr. Lovera has a business in the area and tries to do a lot for the
community.

Jihad Ali spoke, stating that if Mr. Blount needed assistance, he should speak to his councilperson.
The Land Bank is about property dispositions, but other parts of the government are available to help
him.

Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding the proposed disposition.

Ms. Greenberg moved to approve the disposition. Mr. Jeremiah seconded the motion.

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 7 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 12 of 123



Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing Conveyance of 532 West Dauphin Street to Rufus F. Lovera and Elba 1. Lovera
(attached to these minutes as Exhibit L).

Item VII
Public Comment (Old & New Business)

Michael Moran, attending with other members of Iglesias Gardens, spoke about the delays in
receiving a finalized mortgage and the difficulties of acquiring land from the Land Bank. Mr.
Rodriguez responded that he hoped the mortgages would be finalized at PRA’s October Board
meeting, and the transactions could be completed shortly thereafter.

Chair Wetzel asked if this would be resolved prior to the next Land Bank Board meeting. Mr.
Rodriguez responded that he hoped it would be, but he cannot compel the PRA Board to act.

Ms. Lopez Kriss asked what the specific PRA agenda item was. Mr. Rodriguez responded that two
large garden dispositions in the Third District are pending, and the Land Bank cannot finalize its
mortgages until PRA has finalized its mortgages to ensure consistency across agencies.

Ms. Greenberg asked if the PRA Board approval was the final clarification needed to move forward.
Mr. Rodriguez responded in the affirmative.

Mr. Goodman asked if the mortgage uniformity was a requirement or a choice. Mr. Rodriguez
explained how the mortgage corresponds to requirements associated with interagency transfers, and
as most Land Bank property is acquired via interagency transfers, the law departments at the
agencies and City believe this is necessary.

Mara Hanao asked about a Land Bank property involved in a proposed swap transaction involving
Iglesias Gardens, the Land Bank, and a private developer. She stated that the lot to be swapped with
the developer’s lot is fenced in and asked if the swap was still moving forward. Mr. Rodriguez
responded the swap was moving forward. Ms. Imredy Saah responded that the Land Bank was
unaware of the fence and will send an inspector to the property to gather more information.

Mr. Goodman, referencing a previously unwound transaction involved vacant structures, stated he
recently learned of applications to renovate City-owned structures but that the houses were torn down
before renovation was possible. Mr. Goodman requested that staff inventory all vacant houses in
public ownership and determine how to sell them prior to demolition.

Item VIII
Adjournment

Seeing no further comments from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel called for a motion to
adjourn.

Ms. Lopez Kriss moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Johns seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn at 11:12 am.

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 8 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 13 of 123



PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, September 10,2024 at 10:00 AM.

User Name
Susan Callanen
Rustin Ohler
Jihad Ali
Mike Tomasetti
Lynda Gono
Jacquie J Sims
Mo Rushdy
Rick
David Langlieb
Winnie Branton
Isaac Singleton
Jamier Hughes
Julie Hankins
Joyce Smith
Parfine Mudacumura
Gail Mapp
Andra McLellan
Erika Rosano
Elba Lovera
Lauren Troop
Antonio Cerqueina
Kirnon Joaqun
Jamila Davis
Carolina Pena
Mara Heno
Anthony Bry
Che Green
Jeff Katz
Johnny Young
Rufus Lovera
Michael Moron
Ebonye Williams
Carolina Torres
Manuela G
Jerome Blount
Diquon Allegnic
Khalief Evangel

Page 1 of 2

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 9 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 14 of 123



PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, September 10, 2024, at 10:00 AM.

User Name
Sloane Folk
David Cunningham
Nour Antyan
Anthony Evangel
Saleena Welcce
Rashan Johnson
Chakeen Gibbons

Page 2 of 2

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 10 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 15 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors
09/10/2024

Meeting

CITY OF PHILADELPHIA

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

DATE: Tuesday, September 10, 2024,

Philadelphia, PA

REBECCA LOPEZ KRISS,

Director

TODD HESTAND, Senior

LEXITAS LEGAL/PHILADELPHIA

1600 MARKET STREET, SUITE 1

PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA 1
(215) 504-4622

www.lexitaslegal.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

10:00 a.m.

LOCATION: 1234 Market Street, 17th Floor

REPORTED BY: Michele Murphy, Court Reporter

BOARD MEMBERS: HERBERT WETZEL, Board Chair
NICHOLAS DEMA, Vice Chair
ANDREW GOODMAN, Secretary

Treasurer

MAJEEDAH RASHID, Member
CORNELIUS BROWN, Member
JENNY GREENBERG, Member
MICHAEL JOHNS, Member

KELVIN JEREMIAH, Member
DARWIN BEAUVATIS, Member

ALSO PRESENT: ANDREA IMREDY SAAH, ESQUIRE
ROBERT SPENCE, ESQUIRE
ANGEL RODRIGUEZ, Executive

MATHEN PULLUKATTU, Senicr
Development Specialist

Development Speclalist

COURT REPORTERS - VIDEOGRAPHERS

700
9103

Page 1

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia

215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 11 of 64
Page 16 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 2 Page 4
1 L 1 So please respond present 1T
2 PROCEEDINGS 2 vou are here.
3 ¥k ok % % 3 Cornelius Brown.
4 MS. SAZH: Good morning, 4 MR. BROWN: Present.
5 everyone. This meeting is being held in 5 MS. SARH: Nick Dema.
6 person, the first time in a long time, 5 MR. DEMA: Pregent.
7 and it is being transcribed by a court 7 MS. SARH: Andrew Goodman.
8 reporter. So i1f vou have any comments or 8 ME. GOODMAN: Present.
9 questicns, please be sure -- we would 9 MS. SARH: Jenny Greenberg.
10 appreciate 1f you would stand up and 10 MS. CGREENEEEG: Present.
11 speak clearly so that it's easy for our 11 MS. SAAH: Rebecca Lopez Kriss.
12 transcriptionist to get your comment in 12 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Present.
13 full. Please alsoc state your name when 13 MS. SARH: Majeedah Rashid.
14 vou make a comment or have a question, 14 MS. RASHID: Present.
15 and I'm asking the same of the Board. 15 MS. SARH: Herbert wetzel.
16 If you have any questions 16 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Present.
17 regarding the Beoard packet, vou should 17 MS. SAAH: Michael Johns.
13 all have received a Board packet outside. 18 ME. JOHNS: Present.
19 If any of you have not received one, 19 MS. SARH: Darwin Beauvails.
20 please let us know and we will make more. 20 (No response.)
21 Please do walt until the public 21 MS. SARH: Not here.
22 comment section for each agenda item to 22 Maria Gonzalez.
23 speak to that agenda item sc that we can 23 (No response.)
24 address things in order. 24 MS. SARH: Alsoc not here.
Page 3 Page B
1 Pricr te today's public 1 Oh, Kelvin, I apologize. I
2 seszion, the Board held an Executive 2 thought T said your name.
3 Sesgion during which Mr. Rodriguez 3 Kelvin Jeremiah.
4 reviewed the agenda. 2And that's it. 4 ME. JEREMIAH: Present.
5 I will then alsc go over rules 5 MS. SARH: Thank vou.
6 of conduct for public comment. 3 2nd we have a quorum and are
7 So please ralse your hand 1f 7 able to procead with business.
8 voul wish to make a comment or state a 8 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Can we start
9 cuestion. Individuals will be allowed 9 with the Executive Director's report.
10 two mimites per public comment per person 10 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Do vyou want to
11 per agenda item. If mwore than one perscn 11 approve the minites first?
1z or more than a certain nunber of people 12 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Well, if vou
13 have the same comments on the same 13 would like me to do it that way, let's do
14 matter, the Chair reserves the right to 14 it.
15 limit comments. Comments must be related 15 The minutes have been
16 to the specific agenda item in question. 16 distributed to everyone. Can I get a
17 2nd we ask that there be no 17 motion to adeopt?
18 personal attacks or hate speech against 18 MR. JOHNS: Moticn to adopt.
19 anyvone, including applicants, staff 19 Michael Jchns.
20 members, Board members or menkers of the 20 MR . GOODMAN: Second.
21 public. 21 Andrew Goodman.
22 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Want to do a 22 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Motion has
23 rell call. 23 been made and properly seccnded.
24 MS. SARH: Yes. 24 Are there any questions?

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

Page 12 of 64
Page 17 of 123

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024

Page ¢ Page 8
1 (No response.) 1 consultation with the District Council
2 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: All in favor 2 office. The AMI of both the
3 say ave. 3 Board-approved dispositions remains at 20
4 (Aye.) 4 percent of EMI.
5 CHATIRMAN WETZEL: Those 5 The tweo prejects that were
& opposed, nay. 6 amended were Grays Perry - Dover and
7 (No response.) 7 Myrtlewood by Affordable Blliance Company
8 CHEIRMAN WETZEL: The ayes have 8 LLC. That was identified as
2] it. 9 three-badroom, two-bath properties,
10 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Good morning, 10 1,200 scuare feet. &And then Grays
11 Board members and the public. I want to 11 Ferry - Wharton and Dover, again
12 cover three items. First I'd like to 12 Affordable Alliance Company LLC. Those
13 discuss dispositions for Fiscal Year 13 were three-bedroom, two-bath. These are
14 2025. BAs the Board is aware and the 14 all two stories, and the square footage
15 public may be aware, we c¢losed out Fiscal 15 on that was 950 to 1,080 square feet.
16 Year '24 in June. There were Board 16 And then, finally, I'd like to
17 approvals at that point. We then have 17 inform the Beard of a ribkon cutting that
18 had Board approvals in July and August. 18 we had for the 100th home for Turn the
19 I'm happy to report that we 19 Kev that was held on Friday,
20 have a total of 24 resolutions for 20 September 6th at 10:00 a.m. So present
21 dispositions. We have conformed those 21 we had the Land Bank, PHDC, Mayor's
22 into City Council resolutions and 22 Office, City Council representation from
23 conveyed them over to the Mayor's Office, 23 the Council President and Council
24 and they're all prepped and ready for 24 District office. We were there to

Page 7 Page 9
1 City Council introduction. So we'll be 1 celebrate the 100th homebuyer and do a
2 tracking them as Council resumes. 2 ribbon cutting.
3 2nd for the public, if vyvou're 3 I just want to point out to the
4 not aware, City Council just resumed 4 Board and to the public we initiated this
5 hearings cn September 5th. 5 program as part of the Neighborhood
& So that's the first item. 5] Preservation Initiative, which is a
7 Next I want to inform the Beard 7 $400 million heond issuance. This is part
3 on approved changes to already approved 8 of what's considered the blueprint for
9 projects. So pursuant to Resolution S homeownership. We started this in '22,
10 23-32, which allows the Executive 10 2022, 1ssu=d RFPz in '23. So it's a
11 Director of the Land Bank from time to 11 pretty cuick turnaround, and to get to
12 time on behalf of the Land Bank to 12 the finished product and have sold 100
13 approve an increasge in maximum price of 13 properties is an amazing achievement.
14 affordable homecownership units 14 I want to thank all of our
15 constructed by a developer as part of a 15 partners at the City and all the
16 Board-approved disposition, I have 16 developers who have been approved. We
17 approved the increase of the maximum 17 have about 450 more properties that are
18 price for the following Board-approved 18 under constructicon. We will be having
19 dispositions Co $265,000 per unit. The 1% another Turn the Key ribbon cutting in
20 increase 18 dus to increased constructicn 20 Octcober, and that will ke for the two
21 costs due te soll conditions at the site 21 projects that I had menticned earlier,
22 and the inclusion of finished basements 22 Grays Ferry - Dover and Myrtlewood and
23 to both projects. 2ll of these changes 23 Grays Ferry - Wharton and Dover.
24 were reviewed and approved in 24 The other thing I'd like to

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia

215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 13 of 64
Page 18 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 10 Page 12
1 point out is that these two projects that 1 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Herb, I have
2 will be the next ribbon cutting that we 2 a question.
3 have were a partnership with a Minority 3 Rebecca Lopez Kriss.
4 Developer Program partnership with a 4 I have a cuestion. I just want
5 prime develcper, Riverwards Group. So 5 to get back to Angel's Executive
3 it's Fine Print Ceonstruction and the 6 Director's report. Just for the room, I
7 Riverwards Group to do that. 7 want to confirm the change in price on
B So, agaln, we are really 2} thoge units was from 250,000 to 2657
9 excited about it, and I applaud wy staff 9 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Correct.
10 for all the work they did on behalf of 10 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: So just a
11 the developers, and congratulate all the 11 15,000 increase?
12 homebuyers. So thank vou. 12 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Correct.
12 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou, 13 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Okay. Thank
14 Angel. 14 Vo,
15 T just want to go back for a 15 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vou,
16 second here. The Board adopted a charter 16 Rebecca.
17 program, Policy and Plamning Coumittee, 17 Angel .
18 and, Andrew, vyou were chosen by the Beard 18 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Certainly.
19 menbers appointed to that conmittes. So 19 This is Agenda Item V, the interagency
20 would you please give an update. 20 transfers. So today we're asking the
21 MR. GOODMEN: Absclutely, 21 Beard to authorize the properties below
22 Mr. Chair, ves. 22 for transfer to the Philadelphia Housing
23 My name is Andrew Goeodman, 23 Development Corporation for dispositicn,
24 Chair of the Peolicy and Planning 24 reuge, and management by the Philadelphia
Page 11 Pagse 13
1 Committee. So for those who participated 1 Housing Development Corporation,
2 in the Board meeting a couple months ago, 2 specifically for community open space
3 the Beard adopted a charter for a couple 3 preservation. The properties are as
4 committees, one being the Policy and 4 follows: 1105 North 41st Street in the
5 Planning Committes. 5 Third Councilmenic District. This
5 We had a director's meeting a 6 property is being transferred from the
7 couple weeks ago. It was very 7 Department of Public Property to the Land
8 preliminary, and no new substantive 8 Bank -- to PHDC via the Land Bank.
9 topics were discussed. The main 9 Then we have 1218 North 41st
10 functions were to elect a new chair, 10 Street in the Third Councilmanic
11 which is myself, review the particulars 11 District. That property is being
12 of the committes charter, and discuss the 12 transferred from the Department of Pubklic
13 various kind of ways that the roles and 13 Property to PHDC via the Land Bank.
14 responsibilities of the committee within 14 CHRAIRMEN WETZEL: Are there any
15 the Lank Bank could be applied to 15 questions from the Board?
16 different topics, as well as setting 16 (No response.)
17 recurring meetings. So we'll be meeting 17 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Hearing ncne,
18 monthly starting next month. 18 Andrea, were there any written comments
19 2nd that is my report, 19 submitted?
20 Mr. Chair. 20 M3. SARH: There were none.
21 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou, 21 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Are there any
22 Andrew. 22 public comments?
23 2nd so now we'll move to the 23 Yes, ma'arm.
24 first agenda item. 24 MS. SMITH: Hi. My name is
Lexitas Legal Philadelphia

215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 14 of 64
Page 19 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 14 page 16

1 Joyce Smdth. I am a housing advocate. I 1 Are there any other public

2 serve on the East Parkside Board of 2 comments?

3 Trustees. I work directly with the East 3 MS. MAPP: Yesg. My name is

4 Parkside Residents Association, and I 4 Gail Mapp, Concerned Citizens of

5 Jjust want to say since the early 19%0s 5 Fhiladelphia.

5 East Parkside residents have worked 5 We're requesting the

7 passionately and diligently to carve out 7 withdraw/cancellations of the Land Bank

8 a mich-needed play space for children in 8 City property disposition for =male for

9 our conmunity. 9 lower/market-rate development and hold
10 North sStar Park has evolved 10 City properties for low/moderate-income
11 into -- to serve as a major community 11 eggential workers, families, homeowners,
12 event space in our community. We have 12 and remove off the list 2210 Latcna
13 neighborhocd meetings. We hold RCO 13 street for the green space neighborhood.
14 mestings therse. 2And 1it's alsc a place 14 Thank vou.

15 where residents have all kinds of 15 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: I'm sorry.
16 celebrations. 2nd I can actually go on 16 Let me do a little reminder. You need to
17 with all the stuff that we do and have 17 make public comment on the specific
18 been doing on this parcel for a really 18 regolution. This resclution has two
19 long time. 19 properties in the Third Council District.
20 So securing space has been a 20 MS. MAPP: Okay.
21 lifelong goal for our beloved communi Cy 21 CHATREMZN WETZEL: Thank vou for
22 and also for our legendary Calll Cousar, 22 your comment, but vou need to speak to
23 who just turned 90 years old, and she 23 the resolution that's before the Board.
24 recently stepped down from East Parkside 24 MS. MAPP: Ckavy.

Page 15 Page 17

1 Residents Assocciation, but she's still 1 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: But thank you

2 serving the commmity. 2 s0 much.

3 So con behalf of East Parkside 3 Are there any other puklic

4 Rezidents Association, the Centermial 4 comments on the current resclution?

5 Parkside CDC, the residents and 5 MR. ALT: Hello. My name is

6 stakehclders in Parkside, I want to thank 6 Jihad 211. I'm with the Enterprise

7 Councilman Johnson and Mr. Goodman for 7 organization. I'm also a menber of East

8 helping community advocates like 8 Parkeside Residents Association.

9 ourselves and representatives of the 9 I'm here to give my support for
10 community to realize this leng community 10 these two properties, 1105 and 1218 North
11 goal to have a healthy, active space in 11 41st Street.

12 our community. So thank vou. 12 I really just wanted to mention
13 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank you. 13 and put into the record the woman

14 MS. SARH: May I make a 14 Mg. Calli Cousar. She's 920 vears old.

15 comment, Mr. Chair. 15 She has been cover in that neighberhood
16 I just wanted to explain why 16 gince she was born, and she has made

17 Mr. Goodman left the room. He is 17 something out of nothing her entire life.
18 recuging himself because he was involved 18 So in honor of her and that's
19 in helping -- he's involved in helping to 19 why we wanted to make this park, and she
20 preserve this communlty open space, and 20 is looking forward to the Tuture. 3o we
21 g0 he cannot either participate in or 21 thank vou for meking this resolution

23 vote on this matter. 23 possible.

23 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vyou, 23 CHATRMAN WETZEL: Any

24 Andrea. 24 additional public comments?

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 15 of 64
Page 20 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 18 Page 20

1 (No response. ) 1 The applicaticns were solicited
2 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Can I get a 2 bv a recuest for proposal for the

3 motion to adopt? 3 properties, and the applicant was the

4 MR. JOHNS: Motion to approve. 4 most qualified bidder evaluated pursuant
5 Michael Johns. 5 to the disposition policy.

6 Motion to approve. 6 2n EOP plan will apply to this
7 MS. GREENBERG: Second. 7 project. The parcel list are 33, 24, 45,
8 Jenny Greenberg. 8 49, 51, 53, 55, 57, 59, 61, 62, 65, 63,

9 CHAIRMAEN WETZEL: A motion has 9 73, 75, 77, 78, B89 to 91, and 106 East

10 been made and properly seconded. 10 Ashmead Street. 2And these are all in

11 211 in favor say aye. 11 Council District 3.

12 (Rve.) 12 CHRIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vou.

13 CHRIRMAN WETZEL: Opposed, nay. 13 MR. PULLUKATTU: District 2.

14 (No response. ) 14 CHRIRMEN WETZEL: ZAre there any
15 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: The ayes have 15 questicns from the Board?

16 it. 16 (No response. )

17 The next resclution. 17 CHATRMEN WETZEL: 2ndrea, ware
18 MR. PULLUKATTU: Good morning, 18 there any written comments submitted?

19 merbers of the Board and members of the 19 MS. SRREH: Yes, there were,
20 public. Thank vou for being here. This 20 Mr. Chair. There were letters in support
21 morning we have a -- today we're asking 21 and letters in opposition.
22 the Board -- 22 The first letter is from
23 COURT REPORTER: I'm 80rry. 23 Suzanne Ponsen from West Central
24 Can I have your name? 24 Germantown Neighbors. She's the

Page 19 Page 21

1 MR. PULLUKATTU: WMy name is 1 President of West Central Germantown

2 Mathen Pullukattu. I'm with the Land 2 Neighbors, and she asked that -- she =aid
3 Bank. 3 many neighbors of these properties have

4 Today we are asking the Board 4 long asked to purchase those that adjein
5 to authorize the properties below for the 5 theirs. Why aren't they being given that
6 submission to HOW Affordable Housing LLC 6 opportunity? They should be given the

7 to develop 21 affordable homeownership 7 right of first refusal given their

3 units in the Eighth Council District. 3 repeated attempts to acquire them. 2Rlso
9 Five of the units will be two stories, 9 many more near neighbors have expressed
10 with a finished partial basement, 10 the need for community space to mest and
11 containing three bedrooms and two 11 to garden.

12 bathrooms and approximately 1,224 square 12 2llison Weiss gent an e-mail

13 feet each. Sixteen of the units will be 13 thig morning stating that they would like
14 two stories without a basement, 14 to -- excuse me. They would like to

15 containing three bedrooms and two 15 express support for the neighbors who

16 bathrooms, averaging 1,110 square feet. 16 would like the property adjacent to them
17 They will be sold te households with 17 withdrawn from the project and the

18 incomes at or below 80 percent of RMI, 18 longtime block garden withdrawn or

19 for a maximum sales price of $250,000. 19 spared. They alsc -- she would also like
20 The homes will be eligible for 20 to further encourage the Land Bank to

21 the Neighborhood Preservation 21 allow the developer to add a community

22 Initiative's Turn the Key program and 22 space. Thank vou for your attention to
23 will be subject to a declaration of 23 this matter.

24 restrictive covenants. 24 Next we have a letter of

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 16 of 64
Page 21 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Pags 22 Pags 24

1 support from Clara Brown stating that she 1 meeting and will alsc be included in the

2 lives in the neighborhood on Wakefield 2 minutes which are posted on our website.

3 Street. She's e-mailing regarding the 3 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank you,

4 Turn the Kevy project in the Ashmead 4 Andrea.

5 Street area. Her entrance i1s located 5 Public comment on this

6 directly on Ashmead Street about 200 feet 6 resolution?

7 away from cne of the proposed parcels 7 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: I have

8 included in this project. She wishes to 8 questions.

S express her gratitude and appreciation 9 CHRIRMEN WETZEL: Oh, sorry.
10 for this project and how it will enhance 10 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Rebecca Lopez
11 the Germantown arsa, providing not only 11 Kriss.

12 community revitalization hut econcmic 12 Andrea, what was the parcel
13 stability, crime reduction, educational 13 that the person wanted to maintain as a
14 outcomes, health bensfits, cultural 14 garden?
15 preservation, sccilal equity, and sven 15 MS. SAAH: I am not --
16 homelessness prevention. 16 MR. PULLUKATTU: It didn't
17 The one particular parcel, 106 17 specify.
18 Aghmead Street, has caused 18 MS. SRAH: It didn't specify,
19 dissatisfaction within the area even 19 right, so I'm not sure.
20 bevond the block, and many individuals 20 MR. PULLUKATITU: We have the
21 have been affected by the nuisance of 21 developer here and they did meke sowme
22 that parcel and are very grateful to see 22 amendments. There are a couple of sites,
23 it transformed inte something beautiful. 23 near parcels that are taken away from
24 They're locking forward to these projects 24 this project.

Page 23 Page 25

1 starting and can't wait to see how it 1 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Okay.

2 will change Germantown. 2 MR. PULLUKATTU: I'm sure he

3 And then the last letter is a 3 can speak to it.

4 letter of support from Destiny Dobbins, 4 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Because when

5 very similar letter, basically stating 5 I leook at the packet, none of the photos

6 that she is a homecwner in the 3 seem to indicate that thev're in current

7 neighborhood. She is looking forward to 7 use,

3 individuals residing in the Germantown 8 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Correct.

9 area the opportunity to build 9 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: And so stuff
10 generational wealth and significantly 10 has already been removed?

11 diminish the current blight conditions of 11 MR. PULLUKATTU: Correct.

12 the block. 2nd she is -- the project 12 There have been two parcels that have

13 will also eliminate longstanding issues 13 been removed.

14 of safety and sanitation issues by 14 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Okay.

15 including the parcel at 106 Ashmead 15 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Public

16 Street again, which has been controlled 16 comment?

17 by several individuals and which many 17 MR. ALI: Hello. My name is
12 viclent, unsafe, and unsanitary actions 12 Jihad Ali, asg I menticned sarlier.

19 have taken place. Sc she has a hope for 19 cne of the things I did not

20 a better future for Germantown residents. 20 mention, I'm an advocate for MBE/WBE

21 And just so everyone knows in 21 participation across the City. I just
22 the public, all e-mails and letters 22 wanted to inform the Board I've known HOW
23 received prior to the Beoard meeting are 23 Properties for a long time, particularly
24 forwarded to the Board prior to the 24 the developer, Gary Jonas. Without

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 17 of 64
Page 22 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Pags 26 Page 28

1 them -- in wy opinion, Gary Jonas 1s cne 1 we are asking the Board to authorize the
2 of the most honorable developers in the 2 properties below for dispesition to

3 Ccity of Philadelphia. I've known him 3 Cheesecake Properties LLC to develop

4 when he started in North Philly working 4 eight single-family homeownership units

5 along with Francisville, doing things 5 in the Second Council District.

6 over there, working with the Guardian 3 The units will each be two

7 Civic Leagus. He does a lot. 7 stories, without a basement, containing
3 But really the real thing T 3 three bedrooms and two bathrooms, at

9 wanted to say to the Beoard iz, he is a 9 approximately 1,100 scuare feet each.

10 developer that has gone beyvond the effort 10 They will be =old to households with

11 to include diversity. He has -- he's one 11 incomes at or beleow 80 percent 2MI, for a
1z of the only developers that I'm aware of 12 mezimum sales price of $250,000.

13 that hired a voung African American, who 13 The homes will be eligible for
14 iz in this audience right now, a 14 the Neighhorhood Preservaticon

15 phenomenal graduate from Drexel 15 Initiative's Turn the Key program and

16 University, and put him in a leadership 16 will be subject to a declaration of

17 position at the organization. 17 restrictive covenants. The application
18 I haven't seen that, and that's 18 was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to
19 what I'm fighting for. I'm fighting for 19 the disposition policy.
20 that kind of diversity on those type of 20 An EOP plan will apply to this
21 staffs, some type of diversity in the 21 project. The addresses are as follows:
22 house and out in the field, and Gary and 22 1212 South 17th Strest, 1317 and 1511
23 HOW Properties does that. 23 Scuth 20th Street, 1904 South 23rd
24 Gary 1s a phenomenal guy, and T 24 Street, 1216 South 31st Street, 1911

Page 27 Page 29

1 just wanted tco put that on the reccrd. 1 Gerritt Street, and 1932 and 2044 Titan
2 CHATIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou. 2 Street.

3 Any other comments on this? 3 Thank veou.

4 (No response.) 4 CHAIRMZN WETZEL: Thank you.

5 CHRAIRMEN WETZEL: Seeing none, 5 Are there any questions from

6 can I get a rescolution to adopt? 6 the Board?

7 MR. JEREMIAH: Motion to adopt. 7 MS. SAZH: May I just have the
3 Kelvin Jeremiah. 8 record reflect that Darwin Beauvais

9 MR. JOHNS: Seccnd. 9 arrived at 10:24, our Board member.

10 Michael Johns. 10 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Are there any
11 CHRAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank you. 11 questions from the Board?

12 Motion has been made and properly 12 [No response. )

13 seconded. 13 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Hearing ncne,
14 21l in favor say aye. 14 2Andrea, has there been any written

15 (Ave.) 15 comments submitted?

16 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Opposed, nay. 16 MS. SAZH: Yes, Mr. Chair. We
17 (No response.) 17 have -- I will start out with a request
18 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: The aves have 18 from Sabrina and Gavin Takor. They had
19 it. 19 submitted an application to acquire this
20 The next agenda item. 20 property as a side yard in the Second

21 MR. HESTAND: Todd Hestand, 21 District, and although it had already

22 Senior Development Specialist. 22 been set aside for affordable housing

23 Board, Chalr, public, thank 23 development, that application was

24 voul. Thisg is again Item VI.B.1. Today 24 initially processed to see if 1t was

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 18 of 64
Page 23 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 30 Page 32

1 valid and then later rejected, because 1 his project. 2nd they also have a

2 properties in this area are not available 2 location in Point Breeze.

3 for side vard dispositions. 3 Jumpstart Philly -- this is

4 However, theyv're asking that 4 hard for me to do without access to WiFi.
5 the property he withdrawn from this 5 So this is Executive Director Angie

6 project and that they be allowed to 6 Williamsgon. She is supporting -- she's

7 acquire the property as a side vard and 7 Executive Director of Jumpstart

3 contribute to the neighborhood by 8 Germantown and Jumpstart Philly. She's

9 maintaining and utilizing it as green S supporting this project because

10 space. 10 Mr. Cerquelra completed thelr program in
11 The second is a letter from 11 2019 and they have financed several of

12 Izgabela Alvarez, who had scme concerns 12 his projects, all of which he has

13 about the income level, and I clarified 13 completed on time and to high standards,
14 some of that for her, that this is not 14 and he has an excellent reputation for

15 Section 8 housing but housing for 15 his work.

16 hemeownership for people at or below 16 Wext we have Oren Pollak,

17 B0 percent of AMI, area median income. 17 resident of Polnt Breeze, who is a block
18 2nd she was concerned about 18 captain and committee person in the

19 pesgible damage to the foundation of her 19 neighborhood. One of these proposed
20 home due to construction adjacent to it 20 locations is the corner of his block. He
21 and wanted to know if there would be 21 zays none of the neighbors he's spoken to
22 insurance and inspections and things like 22 have expressed anything but support for
23 that, and I did respond to her and said 23 the project.
24 that no construction can occur in the 24 He was at the community

Page 31 Page 33

1 City without inspecticns, and throughout 1 engagement meeting organized by the

2 the project, it had become quite detailed 2 developer. It wag clear from the meeting
3 and repetitive over the last year or two. 3 that thev're committed to working with

4 Sc she's also concerned about disruption 4 the neighborhocod teo promote

5 due to the constructicn, because she and 5 affordability, and he wants to support

6 her husband both work from home. 6 this as a resident and neighbor who sees
7 And she wanted to know about 7 the need for more affordable housing in

8 why an outside developer who has no 8 South Philadelphia.

9 connection to our neighborhood would he 9 Next we have a letter of

10 given priority to purchase a property 10 support from the Philadelphia Accelerator
11 that directly touches the property they 11 Fund, David Langlieb, who i= supporting
12 own and that they have tried to purchase, 12 thig project. They are helping to

13 agalin, as a side vard. 13 finance the project and that he's writing
14 Next we have -- then we have 14 to reaffirm their support for the

15 miltiple letters of support from 15 construction of new, quality housing

16 Jumpstart Philly and LUHV Food supporting 16 that's eligible for Turn the Key, the

17 Antonio Cerqueira's applications of 17 Turn the Kev program.

18 Cheesecake properties. They have owned a 18 Next we have TFAD, Trades for a
19 vegan delil and bistro at Reading Terminal 19 Difference, which is a non-profit

20 Market, have hired Mr. Cerqueira's -- I'm 20 organization empowering individuals from
21 net sure I'm pronouncing that 21 underrepresented communities by providing
22 correctly -- construction company to 22 them with the skills and opportunities

23 build a new restaurant. Very impressed 23 needed to succeed in the trades. They

24 with his performance, and they support 24 are expressing their full support for

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 19 of 64
Page 24 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 34 Page 38

1 thig project and because the project 1 The other and rentals, although this is

2 has -- the developer has consistently 2 unbelievable, it is a reality concerning
3 demonstrated his commitment to serving 3 large amounts of City-owned properties.

4 minority commmities in the City. He can 4 Point Breeze wants to be back

5 attest to the exceptional cuality and 5 in 2012, and this is why we are

& attention to detail that the developer 3 advocating in allocating the remainder 50
7 brings to every project and by engaging 7 more or less City-owned properties,

8 with the commmity and prioritizing 8 including the green space properties, for
9 minority tradespeople. 9 a segment of voters who are

10 And then, lastly, Point Breeze 10 low/moderate-income residents 60 2MI or
11 Community Development Corporation, which 11 below who do not include but have the

12 is a registered CEO in the area, 1s 12 right and opportunity to cbtain

13 exprassing their support for this 13 horecwnership subsidized by City

14 project. They're in favor of housing 14 officials as well as providing for low

15 that is affordable for working-class 15 market-rate Turn the Key programs, which
16 people and are excited to see the 16 Point Breeze should be included.

17  positive impact this development will 17 Thank you.

18 have on the community. And that is from 18 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou.

19 Albert Littlepage, Point Breeze Community 19 Are there any other public
20 Development Coalitiecn. 20 comments?
21 Thank vyou. 21 (No response.)
22 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou, 22 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Seeing
23 Andrea. 23 necne -- sorry. Please.
24 Are there comments from the 24 ME. LANGLIEBE: David Langlieb,

Pagse 35 Page 37

1 public? 1 Philadelphia Accelerator Fund.

2 Yes, ma'am. 2 I just want to reaffirm my

3 MS. MAPP: Gail Mapp. This is 3 support again for this project. 2and I

4 for Council President Johnson. 4 would say that the affordability question
5 Concerned Citizens of Point 5 that was raised by the last commenter

& Breeze and stakesholders request 5 with the Turn the Key subsidy, as I think
7 disposgition of the above City-owned 7 has been discussed before, these units

3 property due to -- for a lower 3 are effectively affordable to folks

9 market-rate Turn the Key program project 9 between 50 and 60 percent AMI. The

10 with Dawn Council (ph). 10 sticker price to the developer i1s cne

11 Point Breeze community 11 thing, but second mortgage buy-down with
12 continues to struggle with financial from 12 the 50 to 75,000 deollar subsidy

13 the pandemic as well as being bombarded 13 eggentially gets these units down to

14 with and by-right market-rate 14 under $200,000. 2And we're always happy
15 developments from private developers. 15 to support projects with deeper

16 The above City properties’ 16 affordability, but, vou know, given the
17 unsolicited development project appears 17 rescurces and the programs available, we
18 to be handpicked and properties which 18 think this is excellent.

19 should not have been listed as available 19 Thank vou.

20 on the Philadelphia Land Bank property 20 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vyou.

21 list due to extremely low-income 21 Mr. Rushdy.

22 homeowners development since 2012. 22 ME. RUSHDY: Thank you, Mr.

23 Currently the low-income low-wage 23 Chair. Mo Rushdy from BIA.

24 affordable homeowners is the low amount. 24 I just want to mention that

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 20 of 64
Page 25 of 123



Exhibit A

Becard of Directcrs Meeting

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

09/10/2024
Page 38 Page 40

1 2042 Titan Street, which is one of the 1 what he represents. He represents the

2 homes right next to cne of the 2 organization that trains voung Black and
3 properties, just sold for 428,000. S0 3 brown men and women into the trades.

4 that tells vyou how much this program is 4 This Board is going to

5 g0 great that the average buyer will have 5 authorize almest $300 wmillion worth of

6 5195, 000 mortgage right next to a 6 work. I just think the Board should

7 5450,000 house. So I just want to put 7 congider maybe Mr. Ferrarini can do a

8 that comment out there. 8 formal presentation to the Board, hut

9 MR. PRRISSE-FERRARINI: I'm 9 this program should he a part of

10 Jordan Parisse-Ferrarini, the Executive 10 everything, because somebody is meking

11 Director of Trades for a Difference. 11 meney and there's a pipeline for

12 I just wanted to just -- I'll 12 somebody, but we have to fight for those
13 go on the record expressing my support 13 people in those communities that don't

14 for this project and to speak to 14 have a chance.

15 Antonio's commitment to supporting 15 When this is all over for me, I
16 workforce development and educating our 16 want to be able to rest and say I tried
17 voung Black and brown people getting into 17 my best, I spoke to power, I spoke to

18 the trade space. He's keen committed and 18 power to look at things that you don't

19 supportive of it for going on a half a 19 look at, hecause you're locking at
20 decade now. 20 getting this stuff done. You're looking
21 I also just want to speak to 21 at the housing for pecple. We're looking
22 his commitment to working with Black and 22 at careers for voung people and those
23 brown trades and supporting of pipelines 23 jobes that subcontractors make.
24 for minority participation from small 24 But Mr. Ferrarini has a great

Page 39 Page 41

1 subcontractors and general contractors in 1 organization. I'm a union contractor. I
2 the space and to speak and attest to the 2 gtill have wy union card, but I can tell
3 quality of his work. 3 you the union -- in a city of a million

4 We worked hand in hand with him 4 people, African Americans are less than

5 on some affordable housing projects in 5 one percent of all the trades. 8o wa're
6 the Brewerytown section of the City, and 6 all sitting on getting employved, and

7 it just came out with high cquality, 7 they're not emploved on these by-right

3 precisgion, and he didn't spare any 8 johg or nen-unicn jobs. So we can change
9 amenity at the sake of just a price 9 the future by giving quys careers, bhut it
10 point. Like he really wants to produce 10 can only get better when you practice.

11 quality projects and deliver on that 11 If we can give them continued work, they
12 promise. 12 will get better.

13 go I just wanted to offer my 13 Most apprentices go from zero
14 support on the record. 14 knowledge to four years apprentice

15 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou for 15 program. At the end of that, they're

16 your comnents. 16 licensed apprentices.

17 Anyone else? 17 So in the end of the day, I

18 ME. ALI: My name i1s Jihad Ali. 18 think that this is a program that you

19 I'm currently a member of The Enterprise 19 should also support.

20 Center. 20 Thank vyou.

21 I'm happy to say Jordan 21 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou.

22 Parisse-Ferrarini, he's a member of The 22 Any other public comment?

23 Enterprise Center, one of ocur clients, 23 (Mo response.)

24 but I really wanted the Board to look at 24 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Seeling none,

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia

215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 21 of 64
Page 26 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024

Pags 42 Pags 44
1 can I get a motion? 1 comment. These are instantly laid out
2 MR. JEREMIAH: Mr. Chair, I 2 units. You know I always have conments
3 move for the adoption. 3 about the units and the design. These
4 MR. BERAUVAIS: Second. 4 are instantly laid cut. I do recommend
5 CHATIRMAN WETZEL: The moticn 5 though that the developer raise those
& has been made and properly seconded. 5 basements a little higher so that felks
7 2ll those in favor say ave. 7 aren't sleeping phyeically underground.
8 (Ave.) 8 That's my only concern. Other
9 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Those 9 than that, I think they are decent sized,
10 opposed, nay. 10 livable units.
11 (No response. ) 11 CHAEIRMEN WETZEL: Thank you.
12 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: The ayes have 12 Andrea, any written comments?
13 it. 13 ME. SREH: Yesg, Mr. Chair. We
14 The next agenda item, please. 14 recelved three letters of support and one
15 MR. HESTAND: Thank vou, 15 opposition.
16 Mr. Chair. Todd Hestand. 16 Senior Pastor Glenn Dawson, Jr.
17 This is Agenda Item VI.B.2. 17 of the Greater Impact Worship Center at
18 Today we are asking the Board to 18 2431 North éth Street met with the Prime
19 authorize the properties below for 19 Corporaticn on Wednesday, May 22nd to
20 disposgition teo the Prime Corpeoration of 20 discuss thelr proposed project. 2As
21 New Jersey to develop ten single-family 21 Senior Pastor of this Worship Center,
22 homeownership units in the Seventh 22 they pledge 100 percent support for this
23 Council District. The units will be two 23 developer's ten units of single-family
24 stories, with finished basements, 24 affordable housing.

Page 43 Page 4%
1 containing three bedrooms and two 1 They feel that the project
2 bathrooms, at approximately 1,300 square 2 shares their wvalues of soccial equity,
3 feet each. They will be sold to 3 diversity, and homecwnership, which is
4 households with incomes at or below 4 needed in the community, and that it is
5 100 percent of AMI, for a maximum sales 5 the beginning of a positive changes to the
6  price of $280,000. 6 neighborheod, and they hope that the
7 The homes will be eligible for 7 Prime Corporation continues to bring
3 the Neighborhood Preservation 3 additicnal single-family affordable
9 Initiative's Turn the Key program and 9 housing to the neighborhood.
10 will be subject to a declaration of 10 Secondly, it's a letter from
11 restrictive covenants. The application 11 Nerris Square Community Alliance signed
12 was unsclicited and evaluated pursuant to 12 by Patricia DeCarlo, Chair of the RCO
13 the disposition pelicy. 13 part of the alliance. They also
14 An EOP plan will apply to this 14 mentioned a meeting held with the RCO and
15 project. I also note that this is a 15 they're proud to wove forward with the
16 merber of the Philly Land Bank's Minority 16 overwhelming support of the neighborhood
17 Developer Program. The addresses are as 17 for the development of affordable housing
18 follows: 2407, 2409, 2411, 2413, 2415, 18 by this developer.
19 2439, 2441, 2443, 2445, and 2447 North 19 She describes the amount of
20 6th Street in the Seventh District. 20 outreach that was done for the housing,
21 Thank vou. 21 and they feel that the Prime
22 CHAIRMZN WETZEL: Are there any 22 Corporaticn's project aligns with their
23 questions from the Board? 23 values of social equity, eccnomic
24 MR. JOHNS: I just have one 24 diversity, homeownership, and

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 22 of 64
Page 27 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 46 Pags 48

1 affordability. 1 MS. HENRO: Seo I live a block

2 They commend the efforts of all 2 away from these properties.

3 parties invelved and specifically Edward 3 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Can vou please
4 Pridgen and Darren Coleman for their 4 state your name?

5 willingness to share and listen to the 5 MS. HENRO: My name is Mara

3 needs of the community, and they are 3 Henao and I am a metrber of the community.
7 members of the Prime Corporation. 2and so 7 So ny only question is, the

8 they're asking the Land Bank Board to 8 neighborhood is very heavy on PHA

9 support this disposition. 9 housing, and just a few months agoe one of
10 Then we have the Philadelphia 10 my nelghbors was kicked out of her home
11 Accelerator Fund by David Langlieb, 11 and the house was condemned and closed

12 Executive Director, supporting the Prime 12 down. For whatever reason, she was

13 Corporation's application. They are 13 kicked out of the PHA house. That

14 again providing funding for this small 14 happened to her and happened to other

15 minority-owned development firm, and they 15 people in the same neighborhood.

18 are supporting this project and ask the 16 So my question is, if we are

17 Board to do so as well. 17 putting so much effort into these

18 2nd then, lastly, we have an 18 affordable housing, why are we not

19 e-mail that was received from, I think, 19 supporting the PHA housing, the people
20 from Jercme Blount, if I'm proncuncing 20 who live in the PHA housing? Why are
21 that correctly, who said -- I'll read the 21 we -- why 1s that the focus, and who is
23 e-mail -- good afterncon. This is an 22 thig actually targeting? Because this is
23 ckbjection to the proposed sale of the 23 not going to bhenefit the people who live
24 Philadelphia Land Bank parcels at 2407 24 in these neighborhoods, I can tell you

Pags 47 Pagse 49

1 through 2415 North é6th Street. The land 1 that.

2 has been occupied and maintained by an 2 So I am cpposing to the use of
3 occupant. It was clearly visible, 3 the parcels for this project

4 occupied, maintained and done in a 4 gpecifically.

5 hostile manner, continues to have 5 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vyou.

3 continuous possession, actual and open 3 Yes, sir.

7 and notorious possession, exclusive 7 MR. BLOUNT: How you doing?

8 possession. 8 I'm Jerome Blount. I'm the one that's

9 He's listing some of the 9 occupylng the properties between 7 and

10 components of an adverse possession 10 15. It's been vacant for vears, so I

11 claim, which requires that he go to court 11 just been there occupyving kind of -- I'm
12 to cbtain title to a property, and under 12 homeless, so I just took advantages of the
13 Pemnsylvania law, adverse possession 13 zituation to better my situation.

14 claimg cannot be filed against the Land 14 I understand what's going on as
15 Bank. 15 far as production, and I don't have a

16 He also has a petition signed 16 problem with moving. I thought I might
17 by about 18 people supporting this 17 have a chance for adverse possession, but
18 request to remove these properties from 18 once I found cut what was going on, I

19 the project. 2and that's all in the Board 19 have no rights and no opportunity, no

20 package. 20 nothing.

21 CHRAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank you, 21 I'm just here to volce my

22 Andrea. 22 oplnicn, want y'all to know that I

23 Are there any comments from the 23 apologize for any inconvenience or

24 public? 24 anything wrong I may have done, and I

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 23 of 64
Page 28 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 50O Page 52

1 just want to ask for wore time to move my 1 developer, and represents really how a

2 stuff, because I'm in the preocess of 2 Black and brown developer can really rise
3 moving, and I have no funding, I have 3 in the neighborhood, and I'm glad to hear
4 nothing to really help me. I have no 4 from Council, Council President, Quetcy

5 help. 2nd if I -- I was teold to move by 5 Lozada's office. I'm glad that Norris

6 September 10th, which is today. So I 6 Scuare Alliance is coming around and

7 have about ten percent of wy stuff moved 7 doing 5280,000 homes. That means a lot

3 and I have five properties of stuff, and 3 to me personally, so that's great.

9 I can't move 1t as fast as v'all weould 9 Thank vyou.
10 like me to. Sc I'm just here to let 10 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Z2Any other
11 v'all know what's going on. 11 comments?

12 MR. RODRIGUEZ: So Mr. Blount, 12 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: I have a

13 we can work with you offline. Thank you 13 question.

14 for coming to the meeting and 14 CHRIRMAN WETZEL: Question.

15 acknowledging cur notice. We're more 15 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: 2Angel --

16 than happy to work with you in terms of 16 excuse me. Mr. Rodriguez.

17 helping vou move, like giving vou enough 17 MR. RODRIGUEZ: That's fine.

18 time to move. 18 Evervbody knows me as Angel.

19 MR. BLOUNT: Yes. Thank you. 19 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: It sounds
20 I really appreciate that. That's all. 20 like vou have had contact with Mr. Blount
21 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank you so 21 directly prior --
22 mach . 22 MR. RODRIGUEZ: No. This is
23 MR. BLOUNT: Thank you so much 23 the first -- we noticed him. So
24 too. 24 typically we do have issues with illegal

Page B1 Page 53

1 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Any other 1 occcupation of City-owned land. So when

2 pubklic comment? 2 it comes up for disposition, we do post

3 Yes, sir. 3 the properties.

4 MR. ALI: My name is Jihad Ali. 4 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Has

5 I just wanted to say I know Prime 5 Mr. Blount keen offered any connection to
6 Corporation, Eddie Pridgen. He's been a 6 homeless services from the City or is

7 contractor for years, at least 20 years 7 that something that we can do as of

3 I've known him. He's an excellent 3 today?

9 contractor. I think this is one of the 9 MR. RODRIGUEZ: That would

10 developers that your organization wanted 10 happen afterwards, if Mr. Blount wants

11 to encourage to participate in this 11 services from OSH.

12 proegram, and you did that through vyour 12 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Great. Thank
13 Minority Develcpment Program. 2And Eddie 13 YOuU.

14 ig one of the graduates, along with 14 CHRIRMEN WETZEL: Thank you.

15 Jordan and some others, Anthony Fullard, 15 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Could I just

16 but Eddie is somebody that we're looking 16 put a finer point just so the Board is

17 forward to do good things in the 17 aware? There is no -- we have no way of
18 community. I just think he's a great 18 knowing if somebody is in need of

19 quy. 19 services. All we know, that there's an
20 CHRIRMEN WETZEL: Thank you. 20 occupation. If stuff is stored or on the
21 M. 21 property, we notice, because the idea

22 MR. RUSHDY: Mo Rushdy, BIA. 22 being we would have to clear the property
23 T just want to say that Anthony 23 and give the person encugh chance.

24 Fullard is a great guy, a great 24 So thank vou for coming in, Mr.

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 24 of 64
Page 29 of 123



Exhibit A

Becard of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 54 Page 56

1 Blount, and for identifying the preklem, 1 MS. SBAH: Yes, Mr. Chair.

2 in which case once we're aware of 1t, 2 There wasg one e-mall from Bo James McCain
3 then we would put them. 8o I just want 3 at Zulu Nation CDC, who stated that he

4 you to know the process. 4 was informed about the potential

5 CHAIRMAEN WETZEL: Thank you, 5 conveyance from family menbers and

6  Angel. 6 neighbors. He objects to the conveyance
7 MR. BLOUNT: Thank you so much. 7 of public land for private ownership and
8 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Seelng no 8 personal use. He would like public land
] more public comment, can I get a motion 9 left for open space, public commnities.
10 to adopt? 10 2nd he states that the cwner requesting
11 MR. JOHNS: Moticn to adopt. 11 conveyvance of this lot acquired 528 West
12 MR. BROWN: Second. 12 Dauphin Street, which he states was a
13 MS. SRAH: Can you please state 13 vegetable garden for about two decades,
14 who did the motion? 14 from the City, and that conveyance was
15 MR. JOHNS: Michael Johns. 15 facilitated with the assistance from
16 MS. SAERH: Michasl Johns. And 16 Councilwoman -- former Councilwoman Maria
17 then? 17 Quinones Sanchez.
18 MR. BROWN: Cornelius. 13 He states that that property
19 MS. SAAH: Thank vou. 19 now has an enclosed garage and has
20 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: A moticn has 20 eliminated cne parking spot on the block.
21 been made and properly secconded. 21 He acknowledges that the property owner
22 211 in favor say aye. 22 has a right to use the property as he or
23 1Ave.) 23 she sees fit and permitted by zoning, but
24 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Opposed, nay. 24 objects to the property owner eliminating

Page BE Page B7

1 (No response. ) 1 a garden/open space, and he would like

2 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: The ayves have 2 the Beard teo not grant the property owner
3 it. 3 the same privilege to purchase the land

4 Next item, please. 4 for a side vard.

5 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Mr. Board 5 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Let me ask a
5 Chair, today -- Engel Rodriquez. 5 question. The garden is not this

7 Today we're asking the Board to 7 property.

8 authorize the properties below for 3 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Correct.

9 conveyvance to the following applicants as 9 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: The gardsn

10 a zide and/or rear vard. The applicants 10 was on the other side of their --

11 own and reside in the adjacent home. The 11 MS. SBAH: Correct. 2And it was
12 property will be subject to a 30-vear 12 conveved about a decade ago, I think.

13 mortgage and permanently deed restricted 13 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yeah. This

14 for use as a side vard. The property is 14 was -- the property that the gentleman is
15 532 West Dauphin Street in the Seventh 15 identifying is not the ocne that's in

16 Councilmanic District. The conveyvance 18 cquestion for the Beoard to consider. It
17 will be to Rufus F. and Elba I. Lovera. 17 was conveyed about a decade ago through
18 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vou, 18 VPRC. That was done with, as he

15 Angel. 19 menticned in his letter, the support of
20 Are there any questions from 20 former Councilwoman Maria Quincones
21 the Board? 21 Sanchez.
22 (No response. ) 22 So at that time, VPRC, which no
23 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Andrea, are 23 longer is in existence, would just simply
24 there any written ceomments? 24 transfer properties with minimal deed

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 25 of 64
Page 30 of 123



Exhibit A

Bocard of Directors Meeting

08/10/2024
Page L8 Page &0

1 restrictions. There were no use 1 directly applicable, but I saw there were
2 restrictions at that time when it was 2 no permits listed for the other property.
3 done. The zoning has changed since then. 3 So I just wanted to make sure a structure
4 So there was a wide array of uses that 4 wasn't actually bullt without permits.

5 community members could apply to open 5 MR. RODRIGUEZ: No. It was

3 space vacant land once they received it 3 just a significantly tall gate with a

7 from VPRC. 7 roll-top. From asrial views and Atlas,

8 So there is really no action 8 there is a shed. There is no garage.

9 item for this Board to consider on the 9 But, vyou know, again, even if they did

10 previous disposition from VPRC. At this 10 congtruct a building that had heen

11 point, it is the Land Bank-owned land 11 done --

1z that they do qualify for a side vard 1z MR. GOODMEN: They had the

13 disposition. 13 right to do that.

14 M3. CGREEMNBERG: 2nd 1t would be 14 MR. RODRIGUREZ: The Land Bank
15 use restricted this time? 15 ig not a compliance organization --

16 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Correct. It 16 MR. GOODMEN: T understand.

17 would be use restricted. They would be 17 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, I just

18 required to fence, and they have to 18 want the public to understand. The Land
19 adhere to what they propose in the 19 Bank i1s not -- we don't enforce zoning
20 package. 20 laws or compliance. L&I dees that. L&l
21 MS. SREAH: It camnot be used to 21 haz not cited it. It was dones at a
22 construct anvthing. It has to be used as 22 point, so therefore it was grandfathered
23 a side vyard. 23 in. I'm sure if they tried to do
24 MR. RODRIGUEZ: And there will 24 something, then all new applicable rules

Page E9 Page &1

1 be a mortgage lien placed on the 1 would apply, but this is a historic

2 property. 2 convevance, and that's the issue here.

3 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vou. 3 CHARIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vou,

4 Just 1f we go back a second, 4 Angel.

5 are there any questions from the Board? 5 Any more cuestions from the

3 MR. GOODMEN: Andrew Goodman. 3 Board?

7 The photo in the package shows 7 (No response.)

8 532. It deesn't show 528, which is the 8 CHRIRMEN WETZEL: Are there any
9 other part of -- the historic parcel that 9 public comments?

10 the other neighbor mentioned. 10 Yes, sir.

11 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Correct. 11 MR. LOVERE: My name is Rufus
12 MR. GOODMEN: Do we -- I guess 12 Lovera. I'm the person trying to get the
13 do we have a way of verifying that there 13 lot as a side lot. I have children and
14 iz an enclosed garage on the other site? 14 grandchildren. It's somewhere where I

15 MR. RODRIGUEZ: We do have 15 would like them to be able to play and be
16 pictures of the -- there is a very tall 16 outside, have like a little picnic with
17 roll-top gate. The questicn in place in 17 wy own family.

13 terms of enforcement or disqualificaticn 13 I have a business in that area.
19 given the fact that when it was disposed 19 I alsc look to continue to hbuild. I do a
20 of and, vou know, at the time when that 20 lot for the commmnity as well as for the
21 installation was put in really isn't 21 children in the community. A2And I've been
22 germane to this disposition. They're two 22 in that actual residential over ten

23 separate -- 23 vears. It's not something where I'm just
24 MR. GOODMAN: I mean, it's not 24 new. Again, my business is in that same

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 26 of 64
Page 31 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 62 Pags 64

1 exact district. So I look to continue to 1 (Ave.

2 try to help build that area as well. So 2 CHAIRMAEN WETZEL: Those

3 I ask that vou guys to please accept me 3 opposed, nay.

4 to build the side vard. 4 (No response. )

5 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou, 5 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: The ayes have
6 sir. 6 it.

7 2Any other public comments? 7 That ceoncludes our agenda for

8 Yes. 8 the day.

9 MR. ALI: This is just -- I'm 9 MS. SAAH: Public comment.
10 Jihad Ali. 10 CHATIRMAN WETZEL: So the first
11 Just indirectly, I just felt I 11 part of this, is there any old business
12 had an obligation to just say something 12 the Board or the public would like to

13 to the Board and hopefully to the voung 13 discuss?

14 man that needed help, and, that is, as 14 Do you want to speak on old

15 2ngel said, the Land Bank is not about -- 15 business?

16 the Land Bank i1s about property. I think 16 MR. MORZN: Yeah, I do.

17 that just to make him aware, that he 17 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Please do.

18 really should contact his Councilperscn 18 MR. MORZN: Oh, ckay. I didn't
19 wherever he i1s, if scmeone could tell him 19 realize the floor was mine.
20 who his Councilperson is, because some 20 Good merning, everyone. My
21 people are in government to help him. 21 name is Michael Moran. We have a
22 I just also want to say to him 22 statement here.
23 too, we all know -- we all have needs. 23 All right. So once again, my
24 We all have pecple that have need. 24 name is Michael Moran. I'm a lifelong

Page 63 Page &5

1 There's no need for him to apologize, but 1 resident of Nerth Philly and I'm also a

2 there's a lot of people to help him. Ycou 2 member of the Iglesias non-profit

3 got to just take the initiative. 3 commnity gardens. In 2021 -- tell vou a
4 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank vou. 4 little kit of backstory here.

5 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Just so the 5 In 2021, City Council passed

5 community 1s aware, a representative from 6 legislation directing the Land Bank

7 the Seventh Councilmanic District is here 7 dispose of 15 parcels in the Kensington

8 and did provide information to 8 area to Iglesias Community Garden. At

9 Mr. Blount. We will follow up after this 9 the July Board meeting, a representative
10 meeting as well. 10 from our organization was present, and we
11 CHARIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vou, 11 have been for every other meeting. At

12 Angel. 12 that meeting, the question was asked,

13 Seeing no other public comment, 13 when will we receive mortgages to sign

14 can I get a motion te adopt? 14 and complete the transfer process?

15 MS. GREENBERG: So moved. 15 Andrea Saah teld us the process will be
16 MR. JEREMIAH: Second. 16 resclved, and I quote, by the end of July
17 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: So it was 17 or mid Rugust, end quote.

18 approved by Jemny, and Jeremiah seconded. 18 We are back here today with ocur
19 You've got to give your name. 19 group, three of us here. It 1s now

20 MS. GREENBERG: Jenny 20 September 10th and we still have not

21 Greenberg. 21 recelved our mortgages.

22 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: A motion has 22 I'm noticing today that there
23 been made and properly seconded. 23 have been a lot of quick development for
24 211 in favor say ave. 24 developers, but very slow for commmunity

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 27 of 64
Page 32 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directcors Meeting

09/10/2024
Pags 66 Page 68
1 members and gardens and whatnot. 1 MS. HENARO: But it is not our
i In the meantime, cne of our Z case.
3 properties that we were waiting for in a 3 MR. RODRIGUEZ: 2All right. 3So
4 sense to get our paperwork was destroyed 4 the issue is the valuation of the
5 by a neighboring construction. We have 5 properties. So when we start doing this
5 been restoring this lot for five vears, 6 process, once we get 1t sorted cut with
7 which alsgoc served az a memorial for a 7 PRA, we will be able to issus the
8 neighbeor who had passed away, but because 8 mortgages, hut we have to -- we can't he
9 we do not have vet title to this land, we 9 doing two separate issues. I can't have
10 have no recourse to prevent this freom 10 PRA trving to give gardeners fair market
11 happening again. 11 value mortgages while we're more amenable
12 Clearly, we need the land that 12 to reduced value. So that's really what
13 was promised to us, as so do dezens of 13 the heldup is.
14 other gardens and other community 14 I have been -- Ms. Greenberqg is
15 members, such as myself on a personal 15 aware of this. We've been negotiating.
16 level. I've been waiting for a side lot 16 I'm hoping to have this resolved by
17 for the same amount of time. Slow 17 October, because that's when we're
18 process, right? 18 supposed to be addressing the PRA
19 So the question ends with, 19 properties at the PRA Board.
20 where are the mortgages? 20 So I do apologize for the
21 Thank vou. 21 length of time, but this is the problem
22 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: Thank vou. 22 when we have to coordinate between two
23 Angel? 23 separate entities.
24 ME. RODRIGUEZ: The mortgages 24 MR. MOREN: Thank you for the
Page &7 Page €9
1 are -- we have mentioned this before -- 1 explanation, but where in all of that do
2 are a part of the negotiaticn with our 2 we get reassurances, right? Because
3 sister organization, PRZA. The question 3 maybe in October, but maybe in October
4 is what kind of mortgage will be issued. 4 there's ancther motion to like --
5 I've been working with the 5 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, I got a
3 Board of the PRA. That question is do we 6 commitment from the PRA Board that
7 igsue -- do they issue, and then 7 October is like we're -- this has been
3 uniformly across the board, restrictive 3 very long. I agree that it's been very
9 value mortgages. 9 long.
10 So PRA have properties that are 10 MR. MORREN: We were here for
11 congiderably different from the Land 11 the last meeting also, a little bit of
12 Bank. Soc just for the Beard, I'll 12 backstory.
13 reiterate this. The PRZ has large swaths 13 MR. RODRIGUEZ: There is no
14 of land, like half a City block. They're 14 disagreement with that. 2again, the peoint
15 condemnations. So the value 1s extremely 15 of view of the Land Bank and what we
18 high, versus what the Land Bank disposes 16 advocate for 1s a little bit different.
17 of, which is scattered site in-fill, much 17 We don't have the inventory or the
18 like with Iglesias Gardens, I think 18 typology of the inventory that PRA does,
19 they're all scattered, nothing is 19 g0 there's different issuess at stake.
20 adjacent. So the values are totally -- 20 Also PRA is a different type of agency.
21 MS. HENAO: That's not true. 21 It's a state charter agency and have
23 That's net true. 22 different rules in addition to the
23 ME. RODRIGUEZ: I'm just saving 23 disposition pelicy. So there's a lot of
24 some of them -- 24 things legally to consider with PRA.

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 28 of 64
Page 33 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directcors Meeting

09/10/2024
Pags 70 Pags 72

1 So we've been negotiating. 1 igsues. The rescluticn, which is more

2 Again, the Land Bank iz the youngest 2 operational of the mortgage, one site

3 agency out of the three land-holding 3 will happen before the October meeting.

4 agencies. So there are certain 4 What we're discussing here is that all of
5 historical issues that we have to 5 the gardens that -- we have in excess of
5 negotiate. 6 70. Once we have PRA stating, okay, this
7 CHAIRMEN WETZEL: So let me ask 7 ig the format, then we can start issuing
8 this question, Zngesl: Can we anticipate 8 out the mortgages.

9 being able to resolve this before our 9 The Land Bank has already

10 next Beoard mesting? 10 approved a certain number of gardens.

11 ME. RODRIGUEZ: It is my hope 11 The issue is the paperwork has to be the
12 that that is the case. I can't say 12 zame. So once that -- that question as
13 definitively, because I can't coupel the 13 to the form of the mortgage and the note
14 FRA Board to do certain things. 14 ig the primary concern. Once that is

15 M. LOPEZ KRISS: So what is 15 resolved, we then can start issuing

16 the agenda item on the PRA Board 16 paper.

17 specifically? 17 MS. GREENBERG: Just to

18 ME. RODRIGUEZ: There are two 18 clarify, once the question on the Summer
19 large dispositions in the Third 19 Winter and Wiota get clarified with the
20 Councilmanic District. There's ths 20 PRZA Board, that will lead to ths
21 Summer Winter Garden and Wicta Street 21 clarification vou need to move forward --
22 Garden. There is also a Second District 22 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Across the
23 piece, Kenilworth. So the issue is the 23 board.
24 valuation of it and the structure of the 24 MS. GREENBERG: -- to issue the

Page 71 Page 73

1 moertgage. 1 mortgages?

2 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: Okay. 2 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Correct, and

3 ME. RODRIGUEZ: 2Znd these are 3 all the other gardens.

4 very valuable plots of land, so that's 4 MS. GREENBERG: So that can

5 part of where we're golng back and forth. 5 happen cuickly, relatively quickly.

g Land Bank dossn't -- & ME. RODRIGUEZ: Well, wa're

7 ME. GOODMAN: PRA typically 7 going to issue them out once we get the

3 meets after the Land Bank Board, right? 3 language squared away.

g ME. RODRIGUEZ: Right. So ] MS. GREENBERG: Okay.

10 tomorrow will be the PRA Board mesting. 10 MR. GOCDMAN: So November Land
11 So 1t goes Tuesday. It's the second 11 Bank Board, a lot of garden/open space

12 Tuesday for Land Bank, second Wednesday 12 applications.

13 for the PRE. 13 MR. RODRIGUEZ: There are no --
14 M. LOPEZ KRISS: So they're 14 these are all approved.

15 not going to hear -- wait. What month is 15 MR. GOCDMAN: No, no. I get

18 it? 16 that. These were approved years ago.

17 ME. GOODMAN: September. 17 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Right. So what
18 ME. RODRIGUEZ: It's Septenber. 18 vou're going to have is that we'll be

19 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: So they're 19 able to then move towards closing. It's
20 net going to hear this on the September 20 not geoing to be consideration for the

21 agenda? 21 Board. Nothing is coming back to the

22 ME. RODRIGUEZ: No. This will 22 Board.

23 be -- the target was October. So that 23 MR. GOODMAN: Right.

24 will be -- so there are two separate 24 MR. RODRIGUEZ: What it is is

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

Page 29 of 64
Page 34 of 123

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024

Page 74 Page 76
1 how do we get them to settlement, how do 1 meanwhile properties from all these other
2 we convey title. 2 agencies have gone to settlement for
3 The PRZ iz a different story, 3 development and these guys are still
4 because they have not considered the 4 waiting out in the atmosphere. So just
5 disposition. So it will be a Board 5 tryving to figure out where the like
3 agenda for PRA, not for Land Bank. 3 choices are that lead us to here. You
7 MR. GOODMAN: No. I understand 7 know what I mean?

8 that. But these -- i1s this for kind of 8 MR. RODRIGUEZ: I think it's a
9 consistency, best practice betwsen 9 mix of both. I can't speak to what one
10 agencies or does PRAE have any hock into 10 agency's legal opinion will be wersus the

11 these specific properties? 11 other. So it's lending me to believe

12 MR. RODRIGUEZ: No. They don't 12 it's required, whereas you may opine that
13 have any -- these were all approved by 13 it's a choice, but really I have to deal
14 the Land Bank Board. We're already 14 with those legal departments.

15 transferring them and all of that. 15 MS. HENAO: I have a follow-up
16 That's not the issue. The issue is the 18 question. &s part of the deal that -- =o
17 format has to be uniform across land 17 ny name is Mara Henao.

18 agencies. 18 Part of the deal that we had

19 MR. GOODMAN: It has to be? 19 initially done was that one of the

20 It's a requirement or a choice? 20 parcels was going to be swapped with a

21 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, you can't 21 developer that is across the street from

23 like dispose of it because then, as I've 23 us. His name is Allan Nadav. So he

23 mentioned before, the transfer of title, 23 proceaded this week -- about two weeks

24 1f we don't get the City and PRA in line 24 ago to fence up all of his -- all the

Page 75 Page 77

1 with what we're expecting and doing, they 1 lots that he cwns or the parcels that he
2 then can challenge the deed transfer, and 2 ownsg, including the one that is supposed
3 they also don't have to agree to it. 3 to be for a swap. So is he fencing it up
4 This Board does not like -- the 4 because there's a movement on the swap,

5 PRA Board handles PRA assets. The City 5 or what is the update on that?
6 handles their own assets. So thers has 6 MR. RODRIGUEZ: I don't know
7 to be agreement when vou do the deed 7 what he's doing. He has a legal right teo
8 transfers for all legal considerations, 8 do whatever he's deoing on his land. Are
9 revestments and all of that. It has to 9 we proceeding with the swap? Yes. We --
10 be uni form across the board. So there's 10 M3. HENAC: Well, one of the

11 a very practical issue at hand. 11 lots is ours.

12 MR. GOODMEN: No. I get that, 12 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Let me finish.
13 but 1if the Iglesias properties didn't 13 We are proceeding with the

14 come via PRA, it is still good practice 14 swap. I am unaware of the fact that he
15 for each agency to be consistent. 15 put up a fence. He can put up a fence.
16 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Correct. 18 It's his land. My point to vou is we are
17 MR. GOODMAN: I'm just trying 17 noving forward with the swap. He will

18 to understand if it's a requirement or a 18 have to take that fence down once we

19 choice. That's all. Like a legal 19 effect that swap.

20 requirement or a choice. Because 20 MS. SAZH: No. I think he's

21 obviously there's a lot of properties 21 enclosed --

22 that have been approved years ago for 22 MS. HENAC: No. The lot is

23 garden and open spaces, and I totally 23 OuUrs .

24 understand the frustration, that 24 MS. SAZH: So I just wanted to

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 30 of 64
Page 35 of 123



Exhibit A

Board of Directors Meeting

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

09/10/2024
Page 78 Page &0

1 clarify, he owns three lots on one block 1 It is wmy hope and my prayer

2 and the Land Bank owns one in the middle 2 that you don't have to come back here

3 of those three, and that is the property 3 agalin asking for mortgages. You know,

4 that is being proposed for the swap, 425 4 I'm asking staff to work diligently to

5 Arlington Street. 5 get this done, and hopefully vou don't

6 MS. HENAO: That is correct. 6 have to come back again and we'll take

7 M3. SEAH: Which is what vou're 7 care of the swap properly.

8 occupying. That's his land, right. 8 Thank you.

9 MS. HENAO: That is correct. 9 MR. MORAN: Thank you for that.
10 So that's why I'm asking why is he 10 It's gomething that -- it's true. I

11 fencing it up if that technically, that 11 mear, we can be grateful once it's

12 is the lot -- that is the parcel that we 12 finished to the point, but the reality is
13 are swapping with. 13 that an effort is the main thing that

14 MR. RODRIGUEZ: We're moving 14 seems that have been lacking for us here.
15 forward with the swap. I was unawars 15 Az T made -- as I said in the
16 that he was fencing our parcel. 16 statement, there's bezen a lot of

17 MS. SEAH: I apologize. He is 17 development for developers. Meanwhile,
18 supposed to get that land in exchange for 18 commmity members are sitting here

19 giving us -- 19 walting around because of whatever other
20 MS. HENAO: I understand what a 20 stipulation.
21 swap is. 21 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: I hear vou.
22 MS. SAAH: 8o I'm just 22 MR. MORAN: Beling in real
23 saying -- we ares not aware that he put up 23 astate myself, I begin to wonder about
24 a fence. 24 property values and the modus behind all

Page 79 Page &1

1 MS. HENAO: Well, I'm letting 1 of that stuff.

2 vou know that he is doing this. So we 2 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: I get vou.

3 wanted to know -- well, from our 3 Thank you for the comments.

4 perspective ig, he's moving on to 4 ME. MORAN: Thank you.

5 something because he mdght know something 5 CHRIRMEN WETZEL: Z2Any other old
6 that we don't know. So we haven't heard 6 business?

7 if we're going to get these parcels and 7 (No response.)

3 we haven't heard about the swap. So I am 3 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Any new

9 asking. So vyou have an answer for me? 9 business?

10 You den't have an answer for me? 10 MR. GOODMAN: I have one I

11 ME. RODRIGUEZ: We're moving 11 guess that's kind of old. 2 couple

12 forward with the swap. I was unaware 12 menths ago we had a proposed

13 that he started fencing them. 13 hemeownership disposition of a series of
14 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Angel, can we 14 vacant houses. It's typically vacant

15 send someone out and verify -- 15 lets, but in this case, 1t was vacant

16 MR. RCDRIGUEZ: Certainly. 16 heouses, and they had to reduce their

17 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: -- our land 17 dispogition down significantly because
18 ig being fenced and notify them to not 18 some of the properties were deemed to be
19 fence there or take the fence down =so 19 unsafe or in such bad condition that they
20 that isn't an issue. 20 had to be removed.
21 ME. RODRIGUEZ: Yeah. 21 So we recently found out about
22 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: 2And let me 22 another situation where there were
23 sort of try to bring a little bit of 23 applications that were viable for
24 closure to this. 24 renovating an existing vacant City house,

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia

215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 31 of 64
Page 36 of 123



Exhibit A

Beocard of Directors Meeting

09/10/2024
Page 82 Page 84

1  but the City house got torn down before CHRTIFICATHE

2  that renovaticn was possible. 2 T HEREBY CERTICY that the

3 So this is clearly a pattern, 3 procesdings, evidence and objections are
4 and I would like to, if we can, ask staff 4 contained fully and accurately in the

5 to do an inventory of all the vacant 5 stenographic motes taken by me upon the
6 houses in public ownership and see -- & foregoing matter, and that this is a true and
7 come up with some ideas on how we can get 7  correct transcript of same.

8 these out for affordable homeownership 8

9 before we as a public sector proactively s
10 tear more down. So I'd like to make that 10
11  ask of staff. 11 _\_@QM&,\&&%M
12 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Thank you, 12w "
13 A‘t’ldrew. 13 MICHELE L. MURPHY
14 Any other comments on new 14 RPR-Notary Public
15 business? 15
16 (No response.) 16
17 CHATRMAN WETZEL: Seeing none, i
18 can I get a motion to adjourn? 18
19 MS. LOPEZ KRISS: I make a 15 (The foregoing certificaticn of this
20 motion to adjourn. 20 Lrapscript dees net apply Lo any reproduction
21 Rebecca Lopez Kriss. 21 of the same by any means, unless under the
22 MR. JOHNS: SeCOI’ld. 22 direct control and/or supsrvision of the
23 Michael Jchns. 23 certifying reporter.)
24 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Motion has 21

Page 83

1 been made and properly seconded to

2 adjourn the Land Bank Bcard meeting of

3 September 10th.

4 211 those in favor say aye.

5 (Aye.)

6 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: Those

7 opposed.

3 (No response.)

9 CHAIRMAN WETZEL: The ayes have
10 it.
11 Thank ycou all for coming out.
12 - - -
13 {Meeting adjourned at 11:12
14 a.m.)
15 - - -
16
17
18
1S
20
21
22
23
24

Lexitas Legal Philadelphia
215-504-4622

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024

Page 32 of 64
Page 37 of 123



Exhibit B

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 33 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 38 of 123



Exhibit C

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 34 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 39 of 123



Exhibit D

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF
1105 NORTH 41ST STREET AND 1218 NORTH 41ST STREET
TO PHILADELPHIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land
Bank (the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real
property of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the
Land Bank, subject to the terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best
interest of the Land Bank to convey 1104 North 41st Street and 1218 North 41st Street (collectively,
the “Property”) to the Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation (“PHDC”) for disposition,
reuse and/or management as determined by PHDC.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The conveyance of the Property to PHDC for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) is in the best
interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved.

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-
404 of the Philadelphia Code.

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each
hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver,
and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or
desirable, to consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction
Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the
Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable. The Transaction
Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such
terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or
appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the
Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank.

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior
Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting
following the date of such modifications.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on September 10, 2024.

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 35 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 40 of 123



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400

Exhibit E

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 36 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 41 of 123



Exhibit E

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 37 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 42 of 123



Exhibit E

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 38 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 43 of 123



Exhibit E

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 39 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 44 of 123



Exhibit F

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 23, 24, 45, 49, 51, 53, 55, 57, 59,
61, 62, 65, 67,73, 75, 77, 78, 89-91 AND 106 EAST ASHMEAD STREET TO
HOW AFFORDABLE HOUSING LLC

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land

Bank (the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real
property of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the
Land Bank, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the
terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best

interests of the Land Bank to convey 23, 24, 45, 49, 51, 53, 55, 57, 59, 61, 62, 65, 67, 73, 75, 77, 78,
89-91 and 106 East Ashmead Street (collectively, the “Property”) to HOW Affordable Housing LLC
(the “Purchaser”).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia

Land Bank that:

1.

The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Twenty-One Thousand and 00/100 U.S.
Dollars ($21,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to
approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-
404 of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each
hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver,
and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or
desirable, to consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction
Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the
Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable. The Transaction
Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such
terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or
appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the
Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank.

The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior
Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting
following the date of such modifications.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on September 10, 2024.

Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. dated

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 40 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 45 of 123




Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 41 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 46 of 123



Exhibit G

Re: Opposing Landbank City properties
disposition for Sale for Cheesecake
Lower Market-rate Development

and hold City properties for low - moderate income, Essential worker
fa

and REMOVE OFF LIST 2210 Latona Streetfor { Green Space) Neighbors'request

POINT BREEZE LANDBANK CITY PROPERTIES' HEARING SEPTEMBER 10, 2024 AT 10: AM

Landbank Project description - The properties below are proposed for dispasition to

Applicant: Cheesecake Properties
Property Addresses in Point Breeze
1212 S 17th St; 1317 and 1511 S 20th St; 1904 S 23rd St; ; 1911 Gerritt St; 1932 and 2044 Titan St,

1216 S 31st St- Graysferry

Project Description:

Cheesecake Properties proposes to build eight (8) homecwnership units to be sold to income-
restricted homebuyers at a maximum of 80% AMI for no more than $250,000. Units will be eligible
for Turn The Key homebuyer assistance funding. All units are 1,100 square feet with two (2)
stories, three (3) bedrooms, two (2) bathrooms, and no basement.

First, we want to express our opposition to in-person meetings only. This decision excludes many residents who have obligations and are
unable to come to a public meeting 10am on a weekday. We would are requesting the Landbank Board, government public meeting become

a HYBRID PUBLIC ACCESS MEETING. This would allow citizens who are unable to attend in-person to
participate virtually/remotely and still have a voice in the process and the Landbank meetings.

Opposing Point Breeze Cheesecake Properties Project

Concerned Citizens of Point Breeze and Point Breeze Stakeholders oppose the Disposition sale of the above City-owned property Deeds for a
lower market-rate Turn -the -key program Cheesecake housing project. Point Breeze Community continues to struggle financially from the
pandemic as well as being bombarded with by-right market-rate developments from private developers. The above city

properties (unsolicited) development project appears to be HANDPICKED properties which should not have been listed as available on the
Philadelphia Landbank property list, due to extremely low-income homeownership development in Point Breeze. Currently, the low-income
Low-wage affordable homeownership is a low amount, the others are rentals. This is why we are advocating to allocate the

remaining 50 more or less city-owned properties (excluding green space properties) who are low/moderate income residents (60ami or
below) who should not be excluded but have the RIGHT and Opportunity to obtain homeownership subsidized by city officials as you

are providing for the Lower-market rate (Turn-the -Key) program, which Point Breeze should be EXCLUDED.

CRITICAL NEED FOR LOW-WAGE AFFORDABLE/ESSENTIAL WORKERS HOMEOWNERSHIP IN
POINT BREEZE

NAME cHANGE - (TURN-THE-KEY) program was originally called (Workforce Development Housing) that
consisted of Point Breeze city-owned properties that were sold for up to $230,000. Which was a LOWER
Market-rate housing program to dispose of Point Breeze Landbank city-owned properties for 80ami- 120

2

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 42 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 47 of 123



Exhibit G

ami income level pre-pandemic. Point Breeze has had excessive disposition of city-land under the (RDA
or Landbank entity) at these levels that sold from $230,000 to $500,000. We were told that workforce
development $230,000 level was for city workers, police and firemen workers etc. Residents stated at the
community meetings that the (workforce development housing as well as the market-rate houses) price
level was too expensive or unsustainable long term for low-income, low-wage families to purchase and
that the city properties prices would also further contribute to the gentrifying of Point Breeze Community.

Point Breeze has a large segment of low and moderate income residents, many sing le parent homes, that are making less
than $15.00 per hour (Essential workers). These are the wages many local businesses are paying local
employees. Low cost/low-wage affordable homeownership (30 - 60ami) in Point Breeze is a critical
need and practically non-existent in the private real estate market . This is @ must in order to retain our
Black community and next generation. Their dream to own their own home is still a desire of many, but
they need to have access to low-income, low-wage, low-cost affordable homeownership in order to
achieve and maintain the American dream of homeownership and wealth building.

Due to the current housing state of Point Breeze high priced houses and rents, it is the responsibility of city and government officials
(Landbank Board) to provide the range of mixed-income, equal amount at all levels of homeownership that is subsidized for all people
including low-cost/low-wage affordable homeownership ($150,000 or less.on the front end) and not intentionally increase the housing prices
of the two-story row houses to $280,000 in Philadelphia.

Again, We are asking the Landbank Board to not approve this Disposition Sale for the Cheesecake Housing Project and keep the remaining
city-owned properties in Point Breeze for homeownership for low and moderate income (Essential workers) families.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

cc: Council President Johnson
Point Breeze Stakeholders
Point Breeze CDC
Anton Moore, Unity in the Community
Ccommunity members

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 43 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 48 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 44 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 49 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 45 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 50 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 46 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 51 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 47 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 52 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 48 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 53 of 123



Exhibit G

September 3, 2024

Philadelphia Land Bank
1234 Market Street, 17th Floor
Philadelphia, PA 19107.

RE: Support Letter for affordable housing development by Cheesecake Properties
Dear Philadelphia Land Bank Board Members,

I am writing to express my strong support for Cheesecake Properties' proposal to develop 8 affordable
homes in the Point Breeze and Grays Ferry neighborhoods of South Philadelphia. As a resident of this
community and an advocate for affordable housing, I am enthusiastic about the positive impact this
project will heve on our neighborhood. I am also grateful to Cheesecake Properties for going beyond the
minimum affordability requirements on this project.

I am a block captain and committeeperson in the neighborhood, and one of the proposed home locations
(1212 S 17™) is at the corner of my block and adjacent to the home of a close relative. None of the near
neighbors I’ve spoken to have expressed anything but support for the project.

I had the opportunity to attend the community engagement meeting organized by Cheesecake Properties,
where they presented their plans and listened to feedback from local residents. It was clear from this
meeting that they are committed to working with the neighborhood to promote affordability.

I want to clarify that my support for this development is purely as a resident and neighbor who sees the
need for more affordable housing in South Philadelphia. I do not have any connection, formal or informal,
with Cheesecake Properties or its owner, Antonio Cerqueira. My support is based solely on my belief that
this project will greatly benefit our community. We have some past affordable housing projects on our
block, which have helped maintain diversity on the block and have been a general benefit to the
neighborhood, while housing costs have continued to rise.

I wholeheartedly support Cheesecake Properties' application and urge the Land Bank to approve their
proposal. This development represents a crucial step toward ensuring that South Philadelphia remains a
diverse and vibrant community where all residents have the opportunity to thrive.

Thank you for considering my support for this important project. Please feel free to contact me if you
require any further information or have any questions.

Sincerehy,
27—

Oren Pollak
Resident of Point Breeze

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 49 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 54 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 50 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 55 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 51 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 56 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 52 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 57 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 53 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 58 of 123



Exhibit G

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 54 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 59 of 123



Exhibit H

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 1212 SOUTH 17TH STREET;
1317 AND 1511 SOUTH 20TH STREET; 1904 SOUTH 23RD STREET; 1216 SOUTH 31ST
STREET; 1911 GERRITT STREET; AND 1932 AND 2044 TITAN STREET
TO CHEESECAKE PROPERTIES LLC

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land
Bank (the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real
property of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the
Land Bank, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the
terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best
interests of the Land Bank to convey 1212 South 17th Street; 1317 and 1511 South 20th Street; 1904
South 23rd Street; 1216 South 31st Street; 1911 Gerritt Street; and 1932 and 2044 Titan Street
(collectively, the “Property”) to Cheesecake Properties LLC (the “Purchaser”).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia
Land Bank that:

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Eight Hundred and 00/100 U.S. Dollars
($800.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by
resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-
404 of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each
hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver,
and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or
desirable, to consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction
Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the
Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable. The Transaction
Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such
terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or
appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the
Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank.

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior
Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting
following the date of such modifications.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on September 10, 2024.
Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. dated

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 55 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 60 of 123




Exhibit I

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 56 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 61 of 123



Exhibit I

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 57 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 62 of 123



Exhibit I

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 58 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 63 of 123



Exhibit I

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 59 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 64 of 123



Exhibit I

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 60 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 65 of 123



Exhibit I

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 61 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 66 of 123



Exhibit J

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 2407, 2409, 2411, 2413, 2415, 2439, 2441,
2443, 2445 AND 2447 NORTH 6TH STREET TO
THE PRIME CORPORATION OF NEW JERSEY, INC.

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land
Bank (the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real
property of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the
Land Bank, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the
terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best
interests of the Land Bank to convey 2407, 2409, 2411, 2413, 2415, 2439, 2441, 2443, 2445 and
2447 North 6th Street (collectively, the “Property”) to The Prime Corporation of New Jersey, Inc.
(the “Purchaser”).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia
Land Bank that:

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Five Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars
($5,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval
by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-
404 of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each
hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver,
and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or
desirable, to consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction
Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the
Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable. The Transaction
Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such
terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or
appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the
Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank.

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior
Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting
following the date of such modifications.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on September 10, 2024.
Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. dated

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 62 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 67 of 123




Exhibit K

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 63 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 68 of 123



Exhibit L

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF
532 WEST DAUPHIN STREET
TO RUFUS F. LOVERA AND ELBA I. LOVERA

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the
“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of the
Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, subject
to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of
Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code..

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interest of
the Land Bank to convey 532 West Dauphin Street (the “Property”) to Rufus F. Lovera and Elba I.
Lovera (the “Purchasers”).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchasers for Fifty Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars
($50,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by
resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404
of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby
authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate
the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time
and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may
be necessary or desirable. The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and
modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior
Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so
executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the
Land Bank.

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the
date of such modifications.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on September 10, 2024.
Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. dated

PLB Board of Directors Approved Meeting Minutes for September 10, 2024 Page 64 of 64
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for October 8, 2024 Page 69 of 123






